#### AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES #8073

Adult Residential Treatment Services

**THIS AGREEMENT** is made and entered into by and between the County of El Dorado, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Willow Glen Care Center, a non-profit corporation, duly qualified to conduct business in the State of California, whose principal place of business is 1547 Plumas Court, Yuba City, California 95991, (hereinafter referred to as "Provider");

#### RECITALS

**WHEREAS**, County is under contract with the State of California to serve as the Mental Health Plan (MHP) for the County of El Dorado. As the MHP, County provides or arranges for the provision of certain mandated services, including the provision of adult residential treatment services for eligible Medi-Cal beneficiaries served by the County;

WHEREAS, County has determined that it is necessary to obtain a Provider for residential treatment services for adults with serious mental illness (hereinafter referred to as "Client" or "Clients") in licensed facilities on an "as requested" basis for the Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA), Behavioral Health Division (BHD);

**WHEREAS**, Provider has represented to County that it is specially trained, experienced, expert, and competent to perform the special services described in ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 2. Scope of Work; that it is an independent and bona fide business operation, advertises and holds itself as such, is in possession of a valid business license, and is customarily engaged in an independently established business that provides similar services to others; and County relies upon those representations;

**WHEREAS**, residential treatment facilities are facilities licensed to provide augmented services beyond living and care services for Clients who are unable to provide for their own daily needs;

**WHEREAS**, the residential treatment services provided at Provider's licensed facilities are intended to facilitate the movement of Clients from a restricted environment to independent living in the community;

**WHEREAS**, it is the intent of the parties hereto that such services be in conformity with all applicable federal, state and local laws;

WHEREAS, County has determined that the provision of such services provided by Provider are in the public's best interest and that there are specialty skills, qualifications, and equipment not expressly identified in County classifications involved in the performance of the work in accordance with El Dorado County Ordinance Code, Chapter 3.13.030(b), El Dorado County Charter, Section 210(b)(6), and/or Government Code Section 31000;

**NOW, THEREFORE**, County and Provider mutually agree as follows:

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS	3
ARTICLE 2. GENERAL PROVISIONS	3
ARTICLE 3. SERVICES AND ACCESS PROVISIONS	19
ARTICLE 4. CHART AUDITING AND REASONS FOR RECOUPMENT	25
ARTICLE 5. CLIENT PROTECTIONS	
ARTICLE 6. PROGRAM INTEGRITY	
ARTICLE 7. QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM	
ARTICLE 8. FINANCIAL TERMS	
ARTICLE 9. ADDITIONAL FINAL RULE PROVISIONS	
ARTICLE 10. DATA, PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	42
ARTICLE 11. CLIENT RIGHTS	43
ARTICLE 12. RIGHT TO MONITOR	43
ARTICLE 13. SITE INSPECTION	45
ARTICLE 14. EXECUTIVE ORDER N-6-22 – RUSSIA SANCTIONS	45
ARTICLE 15. CALIFORNIA RESIDENCY (FORM 590)	46
ARTICLE 16. COUNTY PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM	46
ARTICLE 17. COUNTY BUSINESS LICENSE	46
ARTICLE 18. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR	46
ARTICLE 19. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES	46
ARTICLE 20. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES	46
ARTICLE 21. COUNTERPARTS	
ARTICLE 22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT	46

## **EXHIBITS**

- Exhibit A: Scope of Work
- **Exhibit B**: Provider Rates
- Exhibit C: Bed Hold Authorization
- Exhibit D: California Levine Act Statement
- **Exhibit E**: Vendor Assurance of Compliance with Nondiscrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs
- Exhibit F: HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

## **ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS**

 <u>BEHAVIORAL HEALTH INFORMATION NOTICE (BHIN)</u>: "Behavioral Health Information Notice" or "BHIN" means guidance from Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to inform counties and providers of changes in policy or procedures at the federal or state levels. These were previously referred to as a Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Services Information Notice (MHSUDS IN). BHINs and MHSUDS INs are available on the DHCS website,

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Pages/Behavioral\_Health\_Information\_Notice.aspx.

- 2. <u>BENEFICIARY OR CLIENT</u>: "Beneficiary" or "client" means the individual(s) receiving services.
- 3. <u>DHCS</u>: "DHCS" means the California Department of Health Care Services.
- 4. <u>DIRECTOR</u>: "Director" means the Director of the County Behavioral Health Department, unless otherwise specified.

## **ARTICLE 2. GENERAL PROVISIONS**

1. <u>TERM</u>

This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution by both parties hereto and shall cover the period January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2028.

The parties shall have the option to extend the term for an additional one (1) year term after the initial expiration date through December 31, 2029, with the same terms and conditions in the Agreement.

The option to renew shall be subject to written County HHSA Director approval. Upon approval by the HHSA Director, Provider will be notified of the extension in writing, in accordance with the ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties.

## 2. SCOPE OF WORK

Provider shall provide the services set forth in Exhibit A, marked "Scope of Work," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof.

## 3. <u>COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES</u>

For services provided herein, including any deliverables that may be identified herein, Provider shall submit invoices for services thirty (30) days following the end of a "service month." For billing purposes, a "service month" shall be defined as a calendar month during which Provider provides services in accordance with Exhibit A. For all satisfactory services provided herein, County agrees to pay Provider monthly in arrears and within forty-five (45) days following the County's receipt and approval of invoice(s) identifying services rendered.

A. **Rates**: For the purposes of this Agreement, the billing rates shall be as defined in Exhibit B, marked "Provider Rates," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof.

In accordance with California Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) § 5912, as amended by Assembly Bill 1054, as follows: Rates will be effective annually on July 1, at the percentage increase established by DHCS, subject to WIC § 5912 as cited herein above. Notice of rate

changes shall be submitted, in writing, to the address noted in ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties. Said notice shall be provided at least sixty (60) days in advance of a rate change. Upon the County Contract Administrator's written confirmation of receipt of the rate change, the revised rates shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, and no further amendment of the Agreement shall be necessary provided that such change does not conflict with any other provisions of this Agreement.

B. Social Security Income ("SSI") Benefits: For Clients who receive SSI benefits, or have sufficient alternative income, Client/Client's payee is required to pay current SSI/State Supplement Payment (SSP) monthly rate. Partial months shall be prorated by Client's length of stay at a daily rate not to exceed SSI/SSP benefit.

For Clients who do not receive SSI benefits or have insufficient income to pay their residential share of cost, County will pay the full amount of the current rate identified in Exhibit B per month until the Client begins to receive SSI benefits or income from an alternative source. At that time, the responsibility for this additional payment will return to the Client/Client's payee. Should retroactive SSI benefits or other income be received by Provider on behalf of Client for any period during which County paid this residential share of cost, County will be reimbursed by Provider for such payments.

- C. Enhanced Support and Supervision: An ancillary daily fee shall apply when one-to one Client supervision is necessary to ensure the safety of the Client and Provider's staff. This fee is subject to approval by the County and shall be separately identified on invoices. Rates are set forth in Exhibit B.
- D. County Medical Services Program (CMSP): For all Clients who are admitted with coverage under CMSP the following payment procedures will apply:
  - I. Provider shall bill Advanced Medical Management Inc. for CMSP inpatient days as applicable.
  - II. For County Clients who are CMSP members, County will be charged the rate set forth in Exhibit B, unless a credit for payment due from CMSP.
  - III. Inpatient days that cannot be billed to CMSP shall remain the financial responsibility of County at the rate set forth in the Exhibit B.
  - IV. Any credit provided to County for a CMSP billing that is subsequently disallowed shall be reimbursed by County to Provider.
- E. **Bed Holds**: Holding a bed while a Client is absent from the facility shall require written authorization by the County Contract Administrator in the form of a Bed Hold Authorization form, attached hereto as Exhibit C marked, "Bed Hold Authorization," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof. Bed holds shall be paid at the same rate as if Client were present at the facility, as established in Exhibit B. In the event a bed hold exceeds fourteen (14) days, further authorization requires the approval of the HHSA Director or designee.
- F. **Invoices:** It is a requirement of this Agreement that Provider shall submit an original invoice, similar in content and format with the HHSA invoice template linked online at

https://ElDoradoCounty.ca.gov/HHSA-Contractor-Resources, and shall reference this Agreement number on their faces.

Invoices shall be sent as follows, or as otherwise directed in writing by County:

Email (preferred method):	U.S. Mail:
BHinvoice@edcgov.us Please include in the subject line: "Contract #, Service Month, Description / Program	County of El Dorado Health and Human Services Agency Attn: Finance Unit 3057 Briw Road, Suite B Placerville, CA 95667-5321

or to such other location or email as County directs.

# I. For facilities that are **Medi-Cal Billable**, billing shall be performed in a **Two Step Process:**

Provider shall upload to County's Secured File Transfer Protocol (SFTP) server an Excel data file and draft invoice to County for payment.

a. <u>Step 1</u>: Provider shall submit an Excel data file with columns as identified below. To avoid federal and state Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) violations, County requires that Providers submit client's protected private health information (PHI) via the County's SFTP server, or by using a secured and encrypted email protocol in compliance with HIPAA security regulations. To gain access the County's SFTP server, please email: <u>HHSA-Billing@edcgov.us</u>.

The Excel data file shall include the following information:

- i. First Name
- ii. Last Name
- iii. Date of Service
- iv. Service Code
- v. Practitioner Name
- vi. Units/Duration
- vii. Billed Amount
- b. <u>Step 2</u>: County will perform a review and approval of the submitted Excel data file and notify Provider of services approved for billing. Upon approval by County, Provider shall follow Invoice Submittal/Remittance instructions below detailing services approved for billing.

## II. Invoice Submittal/Remittance (All Services):

Invoices shall be emailed to <u>BHinvoice@edcgov.us</u>, or as otherwise directed in writing by County. Invoices must include the following information:

- i. County Issued Agreement Number
- ii. Provider Name & Address
- iii. Service Month
- iv. Invoice Total
- v. Service Totals (Units & Cost total per service code)
- vi. Provider Contact Information
- vii. Include Contract Administrator-approved PDF provided by Billing
- a. **Supplemental Invoices**: For the purpose of this Agreement, supplemental invoices shall be defined as invoices submitted for additional services, previously disallowed services, or inadvertently not submitted services rendered during a month for which a prior invoice has already been submitted to County. Supplemental invoices should follow the standard invoice format. Supplemental Invoices for services provided during the period July 1st through June 30th for each fiscal year of this Agreement and received by County after July 31st of the subsequent fiscal year, shall be neither accepted nor paid by the County. Requests for exceptions to pay an invoice received after July 31st of the subsequent year, must be submitted in writing, and must be approved by the Health and Human Services Agency's Chief Fiscal Officer.
- III. Denied Invoices: Payments shall be made in the amount of the Provider's total claim, minus the amount of denied services. County will submit to Provider the amount of denials received for the prior months' services, as identified on documents received from the State. Provider shall make adjustment for denials on Provider's next submitted invoice.

## 4. MAXIMUM OBLIGATION

The maximum obligation for services and deliverables provided under this Agreement shall not exceed \$4,200,000, inclusive of all costs and expenses.

This Agreement shall be subject to any restrictions, limitations, and/or conditions imposed by County or state or federal funding sources that may in any way affect the fiscal provisions of, or funding for this Agreement. This Agreement is also contingent upon sufficient funds being made available by County, state, or federal funding sources for the term of the Agreement. If the federal or state governments reduce financial participation in the Medi-Cal program, County agrees to meet with Provider to discuss renegotiating the services required by this Agreement.

## 5. FEDERAL FUNDING NOTIFICATION

An award/subaward or contract associated with a covered transaction may not be made to a subrecipient or contractor who has been identified as suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds. Additionally, counties must annually verify that the subrecipient and/or contractor remains in good standing with the federal government throughout the life of the agreement/contract.

Provider agrees to comply with Federal procedures in accordance with 2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

Any costs for which payment has been made to Provider that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 48 CFR Part 31 or 2 CFR Part 200 are subject to repayment by Provider to County.

Consistent with 2 CFR 180.300(a), County has elected to verify whether Provider has been suspended from using the federal System for Award Management (SAM). The federal SAM is an official website of the federal government through which counties can perform queries to identify if a subrecipient or contractor is listed on the federal SAM excluded list and thus suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds.

- A. <u>System for Award Management:</u> Provider is required to obtain and maintain an active Universal Entity Identifier (UEI) No. in the SAM system at https://sam.gov/content/home. Noncompliance with this requirement shall result in corrective action, up to and including termination pursuant to the provisions contained herein this Agreement under Article 2. General Provisions, 13. Default, Termination, and Cancellation. Evidence of Provider's registration must be provided to County within thirty (30) days of request.
- B. <u>Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance:</u> Pursuant to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Grants Guidance, all recipients and sub-recipients of federal funds must be provided the Assistance Listing Numbers (ALN) number at the time the contract is awarded. The following are ALN numbers, award specific information, and program titles for programs administered by the County on behalf of California Department of Health Care Services that may apply to this contract:

Federal Funding Information						
Provider	•	Willow Glen Care Center		<b>UEI #:</b> P56ZAJHD3K11		
Award T	erm:	January 1, 2025- December 31, 2028 EIN #: 680386402		EIN #: 680386402		
<b>Total Fed</b>	Total Federal Funds Obligated: \$210,000					
Federal A	Federal Award Information					
ALN Nur	mber	Federal Award Date /	Program Title			
		Amount				
93.778			Medi-Cal Assistance Program			
Project		Adult residential treatment services and Specialty Mental Health				
Descripti	ion:	Services for referred clients by the County of El Dorado, Health and				
		Human Services Agency.				
Awardin	g	California Department of Health Care Services				
Agency:						
Pass-thro	ough	County of El Dorado, Health and Human Services Agency				
Entity	Entity					
Indirect	Cost					
Rate or de		Indirect Cost Rate:	De minimu	IS 🛛		
minimus						
Yes	Award is for Research and development.					
	0 🖾	Award is for Research and development.				

#### 6. LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

The Provider, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- A. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Provider, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- B. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the Provider shall complete and submit Standard Form SF-LLL, OMB Number 0348-0046 "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its instructions. A copy of Form SF-LLL can be downloaded and complete at https://grants.gov/forms/forms-repository/post-award-reporting-forms.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by § 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

#### 7. <u>NOTICE TO PARTIES</u>

All notices to be given by the parties hereto shall be in writing, with both the County Health and Human Services Agency and County Chief Administrative Office addressed in said correspondence and served by either United States Postal Service mail or electronic email. Notice by mail shall be served by depositing the notice in the United States Post Office, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, and deemed delivered and received five (5) calendar days after deposit. Notice by electronic email shall be served by transmitting the notice to all required email addresses and deemed delivered and received two (2) business days after service.

with a copy to:

or to such other location or email as the County directs.

Notices to County shall be addressed as follows:

Notices to Provider shall be addressed as follows:

WILLOW GLEN CARE CENTER 1547 Plumas Ct. Yuba City, CA 95991 ATTN: Executive Director jpayne@wgcc.us

or to such other location or email as the Provider directs.

#### 8. CHANGE OF ADDRESS

In the event of a change in address for Provider's principal place of business, Provider's Agent for Service of Process, or Notices to Provider, Provider shall notify County in writing pursuant to the provisions contained herein above under ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties. Said notice shall become part of this Agreement upon acknowledgment in writing by the County Contract Administrator, and no further amendment of the Agreement shall be necessary provided that such change of address does not conflict with any other provisions of this Agreement.

Provider must immediately notify County of a change in ownership, organizational status, licensure, or ability of Provider to provide the quantity or quality of the contracted services in a timely fashion.

#### 9. <u>INDEPENDENT PROVIDER</u>

The parties intend that an independent Provider relationship will be created by this contract. Provider is, and shall be at all times, deemed independent and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it performs services required by the terms of this Agreement. Provider exclusively assumes responsibility for acts of its employees, agents, affiliates, and subcontractors, if any are authorized herein, as they relate to the services or work to be performed under this Agreement during the course and scope of their employment by Provider. Those persons will be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision, and control of Provider.

County may designate the tasks to be performed and the results to be accomplished under this Agreement, provide information concerning the work or services, approve or disapprove the final work product and/or services provided, and set deadlines for the completion of the work or services, but County will not control or direct the manner, means, methods, or sequence in which Provider performs the work or services for accomplishing the results. Provider understands and agrees that Provider lacks the authority to bind County or incur any obligations on behalf of County.

Provider, including any subcontractors or employees of Provider, shall not receive, nor be eligible for, any benefits County provides for its employees, including, but not limited to, vacation pay, paid holidays, life insurance, health insurance, social security, disability insurance, pension, or 457 plans. Provider shall not receive, nor be eligible for, workers' compensation, including medical and indemnity payments. County is not responsible for withholding, and shall not withhold, Federal Income Contribution Act amounts or taxes of any kind from any payments which it owes Provider. Provider shall not be subject to the work schedules or vacation periods that apply to County employees. Provider shall be solely responsible for paying its employees, and for withholding Federal Income Contribution Act amounts and other taxes, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, medical insurance, life insurance, or any other benefit that Provider provides for its employees.

Provider acknowledges that it has no authority to bind the County or incur any obligations on behalf of the County with regard to any matter, and Provider shall not make any agreements or representations on the County's behalf.

#### 10. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION

Provider is engaged by County for its unique qualifications and skills as well as those of its personnel. Provider shall not subcontract, delegate, or assign services to be provided, in whole or in part, to any other person or entity without prior written consent of County.

In the event Provider receives written consent to subcontract services under this Agreement, Provider is required to ensure subcontractor remains in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In addition, Provider is required to monitor subcontractor's compliance with said terms and conditions and provide written evidence of monitoring to County upon request.

#### 11. SUBCONTRACTS

- A. Provider shall obtain prior written approval from the Contract Administrator before subcontracting any of its obligations to provide services under this Agreement. Approval is at the discretion of the Contract Administrator but shall not be unreasonably withheld. Provider shall ensure that all subcontracts are subject to the applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, without limitation, the licensing, certification, privacy, data security and confidentiality requirements set forth herein, and include the applicable provisions of 42 CFR 438.230.
- B. Provider shall remain legally responsible for the performance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, without limitation, all Adult Residential Facility (ARF) or Speciality Mental Health Services (SMHS) services provided by third parties under subcontracts, whether approved by the County or not.
- C. Provider shall not subcontract, assign or delegate services to providers excluded from participation in Federal health care programs under either § 1128 or § 1128A of the Social Security Act. (42 CFR § 438.214(d).)
- D. Any work or services specified in this Agreement which will be performed by other than the Provider shall be evidenced by a written Agreement and contain:
  - I. The activities and obligations, including services provided, and related reporting responsibilities. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(1)(i).)
  - II. The delegated activities and reporting responsibilities in compliance with the Provider's obligations in this Agreement. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(1)(ii).)
  - III. Subcontractor's agreement to submit reports as required by the Provider and/or the County.
  - IV. The method and amount of compensation or other consideration to be received by the subcontractor from the Provider.
  - V. Requirement that the subcontract be governed by, and construed in accordance with, all laws and regulations, and all contractual obligations of the Provider under this contract.

- VI. Requirement that the subcontractor comply with all applicable Medicaid laws, regulations, including applicable sub-regulatory guidance and contract provisions. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(2).)
- VII. Terms of the subcontract including the beginning and ending dates, as well as methods for amendment and, if applicable, extension of the subcontract.
- VIII. Provisions for full and partial revocation of the subcontract, delegated activities or obligations, or application of other remedies permitted by State or federal law when the County or the Provider determine that the subcontractor has not performed satisfactorily. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(1)(iii).)
- IX. The nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this Agreement.
- X. A requirement that the subcontractor make all of its premises, physical facilities, equipment, books, records, documents, contracts, computers, or other electronic systems pertaining to Medi-Cal enrollees, Medi-Cal-related activities, services and activities furnished under the terms of the subcontract, or determinations of amounts payable available at any time for inspection, examination or copying by the County, DHCS, Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), HHS Inspector General, the United States Comptroller General, their designees, and other authorized federal and State agencies. (42 CFR § 438.3(h).) This audit right will exist for ten (10) years from the final date of the contract period or from the date of completion of any audit, whichever is later. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(3)(iii).) The County, DHCS, CMS, or the HHS Inspector General may inspect, evaluate, and audit the subcontractor at any time if there is a reasonable possibility of fraud or similar risk. (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(3)(iv).)
- XI. Inspection shall occur at the subcontractor's place of business, premises or physical facilities, in a form maintained in accordance with the general standards applicable to such book or record keeping, for a term of at least ten (10) years from the close of the State fiscal year in which the subcontract was in effect. Subcontractor's agreement that assignment or delegation of the subcontract shall be void unless prior written approval is obtained from the County.
- XII. A requirement that the Provider monitor the subcontractor's compliance with the provisions of the subcontract and this contract, and a requirement that the subcontractor provide a corrective action plan if deficiencies are identified as set forth in ARTICLE 5, Chart Auditing And Reasons For Recoupment, 4. Internal Auditing, Compliance, and Monitoring, of this Agreement.
- XIII. Subcontractor's agreement to hold harmless the State, County and Clients in the event the Provider cannot or does not pay for services performed by the subcontractor pursuant to the subcontract.
- XIV. Subcontractor's agreement to comply with the County and Provider's policies and procedures on advance directives.
- XV. The "Smoke-Free Workplace Certification" will be inserted into any subcontracts entered into that provide for children's services as described in the Pro-Children Act of 1994.
- E. The Provider shall maintain and adhere to an appropriate system, consistent with federal, State and local law, for the award and monitoring of contracts that contain acceptable standards for insuring accountability.
- F. The system for awarding contracts will contain safeguards to ensure that the Provider does not contract with any entity whose officers have been convicted of fraud or

misappropriation of funds; or debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency.

- G. Subcontractors shall comply with the confidentiality requirements set forth herein and include the applicable provisions of 42 CFR 438.230.
- H. No subcontract terminates the legal responsibility of the Provider to the County to assure that all activities under this contract are carried out.
- I. Provider shall take positive efforts to use small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's business enterprises, to the fullest extent practicable, including if the Provider subcontracts services pursuant to ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 10. Assignment and Delegation. Provider shall:
  - I. Make information on forthcoming purchasing and contracting opportunities available and arrange time frames for purchases and contracts to encourage and facilitate participation by small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.
  - II. Consider in the contract process whether firms competing for larger contracts intend to subcontract with small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.
  - III. Encourage contracting with consortiums of small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's business enterprises when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
  - IV. Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Federal Small Business Administration and the U.S. Department of Commerce's Minority Business Development Agency in the solicitation and utilization of small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's business enterprises.

## 12. CHANGES TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be amended by mutual consent of the parties hereto. Said amendments shall become effective only when in writing and fully executed by duly authorized officers of the parties hereto.

## 13. DEFAULT, TERMINATION AND CANCELLATION

- A. Termination by Default: If either party becomes aware of an event of default, that party shall give written notice of said default to the party in default that shall state the following:
  - I. The alleged default and the applicable Agreement provision; and
  - II. That the party in default has ten (10) days upon receiving the notice to cure the default (Time to Cure).

If the party in default does not cure the default within ten (10) days of the Time to Cure, then such party shall be in default and the party giving notice may terminate the Agreement by issuing a Notice of Termination. The party giving notice may extend the Time to Cure at their discretion. Any extension of Time to Cure must be in writing, prepared by the party in default for signature by the party giving notice, and must specify the reason(s) for the extension and the date in which the extension of Time to Cure expires.

If County terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, for default:

I. County reserves the right to procure the goods or services, or both, similar to those terminated, from other sources and Provider shall be liable to County for any excess costs

for those goods or services. County may deduct from any payment due, or that may thereafter become due to Consultant, the excess costs to procure from an alternate source.

- II. County shall pay Provider the sum due to Provider under this Agreement prior to termination, unless the cost of completion to County exceeds the funds remaining in the Agreement. In which case the overage shall be deducted from any sum due Provider under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to Provider upon demand.
- III. County may require Provider to transfer title and deliver to County any completed work under the Agreement.

The following shall be events of default under this Agreement:

- I. Failure by either party to perform in a timely and satisfactory manner any or all of its obligations under this Agreement.
- II. A representation or warranty made by Provider in this Agreement proves to have been false or misleading in any respect.
- III. Provider fails to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement, unless County agrees, in writing, to an extension of the time to perform before that time period expires.
- IV. A violation of ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 17. Conflict of Interest.
- B. Bankruptcy: County may terminate this Agreement immediately in the case of bankruptcy, voluntary or involuntary, or insolvency of Provider.
- C. Ceasing Performance: County may terminate this Agreement immediately in the event Provider ceases to operate as a business or otherwise becomes unable to substantially perform any term or condition of this Agreement.
- D. Termination or Cancellation without Cause: County may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for convenience upon thirty (30) calendar days' written Notice of Termination. If such termination is effected, County will pay for satisfactory services rendered before the effective date of termination, as set forth in the Notice of Termination provided to Provider, and for any other services that County agrees, in writing, to be necessary for contract resolution. In no event, however, shall County be obligated to pay more than the total amount of the Agreement. Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination, Provider shall promptly discontinue all services affected, as of the effective date of termination, unless the Notice directs otherwise.

## 14. INTERPRETATION; VENUE

- A. The headings used herein are for reference only. The terms of the Agreement are set out in the text under the headings.
- B. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to the choice of law or conflicts.
- C. This Agreement is made in El Dorado County, California. The venue for any legal action in state court filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of interpreting or enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of California, County of El Dorado. The venue for any legal action in federal court filed by either Party to this Agreement for the purpose of interpreting or enforcing any provision of this Agreement lying withing the jurisdiction of the federal courts shall be the Eastern District of California.

## 15. PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

## 16. INSURANCE

Provider shall provide proof of a policy of insurance satisfactory to the County of El Dorado Risk Manager and documentation evidencing that Provider maintains insurance that meets the following requirements:

- A. Full Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance covering all employees of Provider as required by law in the State of California.
- B. Commercial General Liability Insurance of not less than \$1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage and a \$2,000,000.00 aggregate limit.
- C. Automobile Liability Insurance of not less than \$1,000,000.00 is required in the event motor vehicles are used by the Provider in the performance of the Agreement.
- D. In the event Provider is a licensed professional or professional consultant, and is performing professional services under this Agreement, professional liability is required with a limit of liability of not less than \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence.
- E. Provider shall furnish a certificate of insurance satisfactory to the County of El Dorado Risk Manager as evidence that the insurance required above is being maintained.
- F. The insurance will be issued by an insurance company acceptable to Risk Management, or be provided through partial or total self-insurance likewise acceptable to Risk Management.
- G. Provider agrees that the insurance required above shall be in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement. In the event said insurance coverage expires at any time or times during the term of this Agreement, Provider agrees to provide at least thirty (30) days prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of term of the Agreement, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of Risk Management and Provider agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the Provider fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, County may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event.
- H. The certificate of insurance must include the following provisions stating that:
  - I. The insurer will not cancel the insured's coverage without prior written notice to County; and
  - II. The County of El Dorado, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are included as additional insured on an additional insured endorsement, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement are concerned. This provision shall apply to the general liability policy.
- I. The Provider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be in excess of the Provider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- J. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as

respects the County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Provider shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

- K. Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.
- L. The insurance companies shall have no recourse against the County of El Dorado, its officers and employees or any of them for payment of any premiums or assessments under any policy issued by any insurance company.
- M. Provider's obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance requirements and shall survive expiration of this Agreement.
- N. In the event Provider cannot provide an occurrence policy, Provider shall provide insurance covering claims made as a result of performance of this Agreement for not less than three (3) years following completion of performance of this Agreement.
- O. Certificate of insurance shall meet such additional standards as may be determined by the contracting County Department either independently or in consultation with Risk Management, as essential for protection of the County.

## 17. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>

The parties to this Agreement have read and are aware of the provisions of Government Code (GC) § 1090 et seq. and the Political Reform Act of 1974 (§ 87100 et seq.), relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees. Individuals who are working for Provider and performing work for County and who are considered to be a Consultant within the meaning of Title 2, California Code of Regulations (CCR), § 18700.3, as it now reads or may thereafter be amended, are required to file a statement of economic interest in accordance with County's Conflict of Interest Code. County's Contract Administrator shall at the time this Agreement is executed make an initial determination whether or not the individuals who will provide services or perform work pursuant to this Agreement are Consultants within the meaning of the Political Reform Act and County's Conflict of Interest Code. Statements of economic interests are public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.

Provider covenants that during the term of this Agreement neither it, or any officer or employee of the Provider, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, in any of the following:

- A. Any other contract connected with, or directly affected by, the services to be performed by this Agreement.
- B. Any other entities connected with, or directly affected by, the services to be performed by this Agreement.
- C. Any officer or employee of County that are involved in this Agreement.

If Provider becomes aware of a conflict of interest related to this Agreement, Provider shall promptly notify County of the existence of that conflict, and County may, in its sole discretion, immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice as detailed in ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 10. Assignment and Delegation.

Pursuant to GC § 84308 (SB 1439, the Levine Act), Provider shall complete and sign the attached Exhibit D, marked "California Levine Act Statement," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof, regarding campaign contributions by Provider, if any, to any officer of County.

#### 18. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will be liable for any delay, failure to perform, or omission under this Agreement that is due to any cause that it is beyond its control, not due to its own negligence, and cannot be overcome by the exercise of due diligence. In that event, the affected party will:

- A. Promptly give written notice to the other of the fact that it is unable to so perform and the cause(s) that is beyond its control; and
- B. Once the cause(s) has ceased, provide written notice to the other party and immediately resume its performance under this Agreement.

For purposes of this section, "cause that is beyond its control" includes labor disturbances, riots, fires, earthquakes, floods, storms, lightning, epidemics, war, disorders, hostilities, expropriation or confiscation of properties, failure of and delays by carriers, interference by civil or military authorities, whether legal or de facto, and whether purporting to act under some constitution, decree, or law, or otherwise, or acts of God.

#### 19. AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES

The parties to this Agreement represent that the undersigned individuals executing this Agreement on their respective behalf are fully authorized to do so by law or other appropriate instrument and to bind upon said parties to the obligations set forth herein.

#### 20. <u>TAXES</u>

Provider certifies that as of today's date, it is not in default on any unsecured property taxes or other taxes, or fees owed by Provider to County. Provider agrees that it shall not default on any obligations to County during the term of this Agreement.

#### 21. PROVIDER TO COUNTY

It is understood that the services provided under this Agreement shall be prepared in and with cooperation from County and its staff. It is further understood that this Agreement does not create an exclusive relationship between County and Provider, and Provider may perform similar work or services for others. However, Provider shall not enter into any agreement with any other party or provide any information in any manner to any other party, that would conflict with Provider's responsibilities or hinder Provider's performance of services hereunder, unless County's Contract Administrator, in writing, authorizes that agreement or sharing of information.

#### 22. WAIVER

No failure on the part of the parties to exercise any rights under this Agreement, and no course of dealing with respect to any right hereunder, shall operate as a waiver of that right, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right preclude the exercise of any other right. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other remedies provided by law.

#### 23. CONFORMITY WITH STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS

- A. Provider shall provide services in accordance with all applicable state and federal statues, regulations and sub-regulatory guidance, as from time to time amended, including but not limited to:
  - I. Title 9, CCR;
  - II. Title 22, CCR;

- III. California WIC, Division 5;
- IV. United States CFR, Title 42, including but not limited to Parts 2, 438 and 455;
- V. United States CFR, Title 45;
- VI. United States Code (USC), Title 42 (The Public Health and Welfare), as applicable;
- VII. Balanced Budget Act of 1997;
- VIII. Americans With Disabilities Act: Provider agrees to ensure that services provided, and deliverables developed and produced, pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with the accessibility requirements of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1973 as amended (29 USC § 794(d)), and regulations implementing that Act as set forth in Part 1194 of Title 36 of the CFR. In 1998, Congress amended the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 to require federal agencies to make their electronic and information technology (EIT) accessible to people with disabilities. California GC § 11135 codifies Section 508 of the Act requiring accessibility of electronic and information technology;
- IX. Child Support Compliance Act: For any Agreement in excess of \$100,000, the Provider acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, that:
  - a. The Provider recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all applicable State and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 (commencing with § 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code;
  - b. The Provider, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the California Employment Development Department.
  - c. Provider agrees to furnish to Contract Administrator within thirty (30) calendar days of the award of this Agreement:
    - i. In the case of an individual Provider, his/her name, date of birth, social security number and address of residence.
    - ii. In the case of a Provider doing business in a form other than as an individual, the name, date of birth, social security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of ten percent (10%) or more in the contracting entity.
  - d. Provider is responsible to be knowledgeable of all current federal and State Regulations regarding Child Support Enforcement. Failure of Provider to timely submit the data required under this section, or to comply with all federal and State reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment, shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. Failure to cure such breach within sixty (60) calendar days of notice from County shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement.
- X. Client Liability for Payment: The Provider or an affiliate, vendor, contractor, or subcontractor of the Provider shall not submit a claim to, or demand or otherwise collect reimbursement from, the Client or persons acting on behalf of the Client for any specialty mental health or related administrative services provided under this contract, except to collect other health insurance coverage, share of cost, and copayments (CCR, Title 9, § 1810.365 (a)).

- XI. The Provider or an affiliate, vendor, contractor, or sub-subcontractor of the Provider shall not hold Clients liable for debts in the event that the Provider becomes insolvent; for costs of covered services for which the County does not pay the Provider; for costs of covered services for which the County or the Provider does not pay the Contractor's network providers; for costs of covered services provided under a contract, referral or other arrangement rather than from the Provider; or for payment of subsequent screening and treatment needed to diagnose the specific condition of or stabilize a beneficiary. (42 CFR § 438.106 and CCR Title 9, § 1810.365(c).)
- XII. The Provider shall ensure any subcontractors and providers do not bill Clients for covered services, any amount greater than would be owed if the Provider provided the services directly (42 CFR § 483.106(c)).
- XIII. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA);
- XIV. Applicable Medi-Cal laws and regulations, including applicable sub-regulatory guidance, such as BHINs, MHSUDS INs, and provisions of County's state or federal contracts governing client services.
- XV. **Drug-Free Workplace Requirements**: Provider shall comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:
  - a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations.
  - b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:
    - i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
    - ii. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
    - iii. Any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,
    - iv. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
  - c. Every employee who provides services under the terms of this Agreement will:
    - i. Receive a copy of Provider's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,
    - ii. Agree to abide by the terms of the Provider's statement as a condition of employment under the terms of the Agreement.
- XVI. **Mandated Reporter Requirements**: California law requires that certain persons are mandated to report suspected child abuse, suspected dependent adult abuse, and suspected domestic violence. Provider acknowledges and agrees to comply with the following state-required mandated reporter regulations as they apply to the services being rendered by Provider: California Penal Code (CPC) §§ 11160-11163, which covers suspected domestic violence; CPC, Article 2.5 (commencing with § 11164) of Chapter 2 of Title I of Part 4, also known as the Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; and WIC § 15630, which covers suspected dependent adult abuse.
- B. In the event any law, regulation, or guidance referred to above, is amended during the term of this Agreement, the Parties agree to comply with the amended authority as of the effective date of such amendment without amending this Agreement.
- C. Provider acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is intended to implement the following programs and agreements:

- I. Agreement 21-10079, and as amended, by and between the County of El Dorado and California Department of Health Care Services (known as the Performance Agreement), available at <u>https://www.eldoradocounty.ca.gov/Health-Well-Being/Health-and-Human-Services/HHSA-Contractor-Resources;</u>
- II. Agreement 22-20100, and as amended by and between the County of El Dorado and California Department of Health Care Services (known as the Mental Health Plan or MHP), available at <u>https://www.eldoradocounty.ca.gov/Health-Well-Being/Healthand-Human-Services/HHSA-Contractor-Resources;</u>
- III. Proposition 63, otherwise known and the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA), was passed by California voters on November 2004, and is available at <a href="https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/mh/Pages/MH\_Prop63.aspx">https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/mh/Pages/MH\_Prop63.aspx</a>;
- IV. MHSA Plan, and any Annual Updates, for the County of El Dorado that are currently in effect during the term of this Agreement, available at <u>https://www.eldoradocounty.ca.gov/Health-Well-Being/Behavioral-Health/Mental-Health-Services-Act-MHSA/MHSA-Plans</u>.

Provider certifies that they have read and understand the four (4) documents identified above, and shall comply with their provisions, including any updates hereto, during the term of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 3. SERVICES AND ACCESS PROVISIONS

- 1. FACILITIES MEDI-CAL SITE CERTIFICATION:
  - I. <u>Medi-Cal Site Certification</u>: County shall audit Provider's facilities for Medi-Cal site certification, in accordance with DHCS protocol.
  - II. Certification of Provider as an organizational provider of SMHS shall be in conformance with Short Doyle/Medi-Cal (SD/MC) "Provider Re/Certification Protocol" requirements available at <u>https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/Certifications.aspx</u>.
  - III. Provider shall maintain at least the following Medi-Cal Site certified and appropriate facility(ies) for the provision of ARF and inpatient residential SMHS services for Clients referred by County who meet the minimum requirements for Medi-Cal eligibility. Any subsequent facilities added or change to the locations listed below, must be approved by the County, in advance and in writing, prior to any relocation, closure, or other change in physical location.

Facility Addresses
2753 White Avenue Chico, CA 95973
1541 Plumas Court Yuba City, CA 95991

- IV. Provider shall maintain current written policies and procedures required by the SD/MC Provider Certification & Re-Certification Protocol issued by the State.
- V. Provider shall comply with the provisions of CCR Title 9, § 1810.435.
  - I. Provider shall comply with the requirements of CCR Title 9, § 1810.435(e) by cooperating with the County for inspection of any site owned, leased, or operated by

the Provider and used to deliver covered services to beneficiaries, except that on-site review is not required for a public school or a satellite site.

- a. "Satellite site" means a site owned, leased, or operated by an organizational provider at which SMHS are delivered to beneficiaries fewer than twenty (20) hours per week, or, if located at a multiagency site at which SMHS are delivered by no more than two (2) employees or Providers of the provider.
- VI. <u>Changes to Site Certified Facilities</u>: Provider shall notify County of any changes that may affect Medi-Cal Site Certification, including but not limited to structural changes, relocation, expansion, closure, identification of staff as ineligible to provide services, or major staffing/organizational structure changes. Such notification shall occur at least forty-five (45) days prior to the change occurring, to the extent possible. If not possible in forty-five (45) days, Provider shall provide County with notification in accordance with ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties, herein, within one (1) business day of changes.
  - I. Provider shall not provide Medi-Cal services at any site, other than a satellite site or a public school, prior to receiving authorization from the County to do so, nor may Provider provide services at a site for which the Medi-Cal site certification has expired or otherwise terminated.
  - II. Provider shall provide CMS, the State Medicaid agency, the County, and their agents, and/or designated Providers with access to provider locations to conduct unannounced onsite inspections of any and all provider locations, with the exception of satellite sites.
  - III. Correction of Issues Identified During Inspections: Provider shall be responsible to address any issues identified by County during inspections to meet Medi-Cal requirements and shall provide County with a record of corrective action(s).
- VII. <u>Choice of Provider</u>: Provider shall provide a beneficiary's choice of the person providing services to the extent possible and appropriate consistent with CCR Title 9, §1830.225.
- VIII. <u>Utilization Review</u>: Provider shall establish and maintain systems to review the quality and appropriateness of services in accordance with federal and State Program Requirements operative during the term of this Agreement. Provider shall comply with existing Federal regulations for utilization review pursuant to Title 42, CFR, Part 456, Subpart D. These shall include certification of need for care, evaluation and medical review, plans of care and utilization review plan. Provider shall establish a Utilization Review Committee and/or Unit, with the function to determine that admissions and length of stay are appropriate to that level of care and to identify problems with quality of care. Composition of the committee and/or unit shall meet minimum State and federal requirements. Provider shall participate in all County-requested Utilization Reviews.

## 2. <u>SERVICE PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS:</u>

## A. <u>Staffing Requirements</u>:

- I. For the purposes of this Agreement "staff" shall mean any person employed on a parttime, full-time, extra-help, temporary or volunteer basis who works at, for, or with the Provider during the term of this Agreement.
- II. Provider agrees to furnish professional personnel in accordance with the regulations, including all amendments thereto, issued by the State or County. Provider shall operate continuously throughout the term of this Agreement with at least the minimum of staff required by law for provision of services hereunder; such personnel shall be qualified in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

- III. Provider shall at all times have the internal capacity to provide the services called for in this Agreement with personnel that have the requisite cultural and linguistic competence required to provide SMHS under this Agreement.
- IV. Provider shall provide clinical supervision or consultation to all treatment staff, licensed, registered, waived, or unlicensed providing services under this Agreement.
- V. Staff seeking licensure shall receive clinical supervision in accordance with the appropriate State Licensure Board.
- B. Credentialing, Re-Credentialing, and Licensing:
  - I. Provider shall perform credentialing and re-credentialing activities per CCR Title 9, §§ 1810.435(a) and 1810.435(b), and DHCS Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Services (MHSUDS) Information Notice 18-019, (This and subsequent notices can be found at

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Pages/Behavioral\_Health\_Information\_Notic e.aspx ), shall review its providers for continued compliance with standards at least once every three (3) years, and shall make proof of those credentials upon request. If any of the requirements are not up-to-date, updated information shall be obtained from network providers to complete the re-credentialing process.

- II. Required Licenses and Credentials: Provider hereby represents and warrants that Provider and any of its subcontractors employed under this Agreement has all the applicable licenses, permits, and certifications that are legally required for Provider and its subcontractors to practice its profession or provide the services or work contemplated under this Agreement in the State of California. Provider and its subcontractors shall obtain or maintain said applicable licenses, permits, or certificates in good standing throughout the term of this Agreement.
- C. Enrollment, Provider Selection, and Screening:
  - I. Comply with the provisions of 42 CFR, §§ 455.104, 455.105, 1002.3, and 1002.203, which relate to the provision of information about Provider's business transactions and provider ownership and control, prior to entering into a contract and during certification or re-certification of the Provider.
  - II. The Provider shall ensure that all network providers are enrolled with the State as Medi-Cal providers consistent with the provider disclosure, screening, and enrollment requirements of 42 CFR part 455, subparts B and E. (42 CFR § 438.608(b).)
  - III. The Provider may execute network provider agreements, pending the outcome of screening, enrollment, and revalidation, of up to one hundred twenty (120) days but must terminate a network provider immediately upon determination that the network provider cannot be enrolled, or the expiration of one (1) one hundred twenty (120) day period without enrollment of the provider, and notify affected beneficiaries. (42 CFR § 438.602(b)(2).)
  - IV. The Provider shall have written policies and procedures for selection and retention of providers. (42 CFR § 438.214(a).) Provider's policies and procedures for selection and retention of providers must not discriminate against particular providers that serve high-risk populations or specialize in conditions that require costly treatment. (42 CFR § 438.12(a)(2), 438.214(c).)
  - V. The Provider may not discriminate in the selection, reimbursement, or indemnification of any provider who is acting within the scope of his or her license

or certification under applicable State law, solely on the basis of that license or certification. (42 CFR 438.12(a)(1).)

- VI. Provider shall only use licensed, registered, or waivered providers acting within their scope of practice for services that require a license, waiver, or registration. (CCR Title 9, § 1840.314(d).)
- VII. The Provider is not located outside of the United States. (42 CFR §438. 602(i).)
- VIII. A background screening of all employees who may access PHI or personal information (PI) must be conducted. The screening should be commensurate with the risk and magnitude of harm the employee could cause, with more thorough screening being done for those employees who are authorized to bypass significant technical and operational security controls. The Provider shall retain each employee's background check documentation for a period of three (3) years.

## 3. <u>CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY</u>

Where applicable, Provider will, in cooperation with County, comply with Section 14705.5 of WIC to obtain a certification of a client's eligibility, to obtain a certification of a client's eligibility for SMHS and licensed ARF services, under Medi-Cal.

## 4. ACCESS TO SPECIALTY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

In collaboration with the County, Provider will work to ensure that individuals to whom the Provider provides SMHS meet access criteria, as per DHCS guidance specified <u>BHIN 21-073</u>. Specifically, the Provider will ensure that the clinical record for each client includes information as a whole indicating that client's presentation and needs are aligned with the criteria applicable to their age at the time of service provision.

# 5. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

- A. Federal funds may not be used for any contracted services if Provider is debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency.
  - I. In accordance with Title 2 CFR Part 376.10, Social Security Act; Title 42 CFR §§ 438.214 and 438.610; and Mental Health Letter No. 10-05 and DHCS MHSUDS Information Notice 18-020, or as subsequently amended or superseded, Provider will comply with the Federal Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector General's requirement that any provider excluded from participation in Federal health care programs, including Medicare or Medicaid/Medi-Cal, may not provide services under this Agreement. Payment will be denied for any services provided by a person identified as excluded from participation in Federal health care programs.
  - II. Consistent with the requirements of 42 CFR part 455.436, the Provider must confirm the identity and determine the exclusion status of all providers (employees and network providers) and any subcontractor, as well as any person with an ownership or control interest through checks of federal and State databases at intervals identified in MHSUDS Information Notice 18-019 as may be amended or replaced. The following identifies these databases:
    - a. Office of Inspector General List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (LEIE)
    - b. DHCS Medi-Cal List of Suspended or Ineligible Providers
    - c. Social Security Administration's Death Master File

- d. National Plan and Provider Enumeration System (NPPES)
- e. Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)
- III. If the Provider finds a party that is excluded, it must promptly notify the County (42 CFR § 438.608(a)(2),(4)) and the County will notify the State, and take action consistent with 42 CFR § 438.610(d) and cease billing for any services rendered by the excluded provider as of the effective date of the exclusion. The Provider shall not certify or pay any excluded provider with Medi-Cal funds, and any such inappropriate payments or overpayments may be subject to recovery and/or be the basis for other sanctions by the appropriate authority.
- IV. Allowing staff listed in any State or federal database to provide services performed under this Agreement will result in corrective action.
- V. Provider shall not assign or continue the assignment of any employees, agents (including subcontractors), students, or volunteers ("Assigned Personnel") who have been convicted or incarcerated within the prior ten (10) years for any felony as specified in Penal Code § 667.5 and/or 1192.7, to provide direct care to clients.
- VI. By signing this Agreement, the Provider agrees to comply with applicable federal suspension and debarment regulations including, but not limited to 2 CFR parts 180 and 417, 2 CFR part 376, 2 CFR part 1532, or 2 CFR part 1485.
- VII. The Provider shall not knowingly have any prohibited type of relationship with the following:
  - a. An individual or entity that is debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from participating in procurement activities under the Federal Acquisition Regulation or from participating in non-procurement activities under regulations issued under Executive Order No. 12549 or under guidelines implementing Executive Order No. 12549 (42 CFR § 438.610(a)(1)).
  - b. An individual or entity who is an affiliate, as defined in the Federal Acquisition Regulation at 48 CFR 2.101, of a person described in this section (42 CFR § 438.610(a)(2)).
- VIII. By signing this Agreement, the Provider certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
  - a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency;
  - b. Have not within a period of three (3) years preceding this agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false Statements, or receiving stolen property;
  - c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b) herein; and
  - d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement had one (1) or more public transactions (federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
  - e. Shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under federal regulations (i.e., 48 CFR part 9,

subpart 9.4), debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in such transaction, unless authorized by the State.

- f. Will include a clause entitled, "Debarment and Suspension Certification" that essentially sets forth the provisions herein, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- IX. If the Provider is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the Provider shall submit an explanation to the County Contract Administrator, or successor.
- X. The terms and definitions herein have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Federal Executive Order (FEO) 12549.

# 6. <u>ADDITIONAL CLARIFICATIONS</u>:

## A. Criteria

- I. A clinically appropriate and covered mental health prevention, screening, assessment, treatment, or recovery service listed within Exhibit A of this Agreement can be provided and submitted to the County for reimbursement under any of the following circumstances:
  - a. The services were provided prior to determining a diagnosis, including clinically appropriate and covered services provided during the assessment process;
  - b. The service was not included in an individual treatment plan; or
  - c. The client had a co-occurring substance use disorder.
- B. Diagnosis Not a Prerequisite
  - I. Per <u>BHIN 21-073</u>, a mental health diagnosis is not a prerequisite for access to covered SMHS. This does not eliminate the requirement that all Medi-Cal claims, including SMHS claims, include a current CMS approved ICD diagnosis code.

# 7. <u>MEDICAL NECESSITY</u>

- A. Provider will ensure that services provided are medically necessary in compliance with <u>BHIN 21-073</u> and pursuant to WIC § 14184.402(a). Services provided to a client must be medically necessary and clinically appropriate to address the client's presenting condition. Documentation in each client's chart as a whole will demonstrate medical necessity as defined below, based on the client's age at the time of service provision.
- B. For individuals twenty-one (21) years of age or older, a service is "medically necessary" or a "medical necessity" when it is reasonable and necessary to protect life, to prevent significant illness or significant disability, or to alleviate severe pain as set forth in WIC § 14059.5.
- C. For individuals under twenty-one (21) years of age, a service is "medically necessary" or a "medical necessity" if the service meets the standards set forth in § 1396d(r)(5) of Title 42 of the USC.

## 8. <u>COORDINATION OF CARE</u>

A. Provider shall ensure that all care, treatment and services provided pursuant to this Agreement are coordinated among all providers who are serving the client, including all other SMHS providers, as well as providers of Non-Specialty Mental Health Services (NSMHS), substance use disorder treatment services, physical health services, dental services, regional center services and all other services as applicable to ensure a clientcentered and whole-person approach to services.

- B. Provider shall ensure that care coordination activities support the monitoring and treatment of comorbid substance use disorder and/or health conditions.
- C. Provider shall include in care coordination activities efforts to connect, refer and link clients to community-based services and supports, including but not limited to educational, social, prevocational, vocational, housing, nutritional, criminal justice, transportation, childcare, child development, family/marriage education, cultural sources, and mutual aid support groups.
- D. Provider shall engage in care coordination activities beginning at intake and throughout the treatment and discharge planning processes.
- E. To facilitate care coordination, Provider will request a HIPAA and California law compliant client authorization to share client information with and among all other providers involved in the client's care, in satisfaction of state and federal privacy laws and regulations.

## 9. <u>CO-OCCURRING TREATMENT AND NO WRONG DOOR</u>

- A. As specified in <u>BHIN 22-011</u>, SMHS and NSMHS can be provided concurrently, if those services are clinically appropriate, coordinated, and not duplicative.
- B. When a client meets criteria for both NSMHS and SMHS, the client should receive services based on individual clinical need and established therapeutic relationships. Clinically appropriate and covered SMHS can also be provided when the client has a co-occurring mental health condition and substance use disorder.
- C. Under this Agreement, Provider will ensure that clients receive timely mental health services without delay.
- D. Services are reimbursable to Provider by County even when:
  - I. Services are provided prior to determination of a diagnosis, during the assessment or prior to determination of whether SMHS access criteria are met, even if the assessment ultimately indicates the client does not meet criteria for SMHS.
  - II. If Provider is serving a client receiving both SMHS and NSMHS, Provider holds responsibility for documenting coordination of care and ensuring that services are non-duplicative.

# ARTICLE 4. CHART AUDITING AND REASONS FOR RECOUPMENT

1. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

Provider shall maintain proper clinical and fiscal records relating to clients served under the terms of this Agreement, as required by the Director, DHCS, and all applicable state and federal statutes and regulations. Client records shall include but not be limited to admission records, diagnostic studies and evaluations, client interviews and progress notes, and records of services provided. All such records shall be maintained in sufficient detail to permit evaluation of the services provided and to meet claiming requirements.

## 2. ACCESS TO RECORDS

Provider shall provide County with access to all documentation of services provided under this Agreement for County's use in administering this Agreement. Provider shall allow County, CMS, the Office of the Inspector General, the Controller General of the United States, and any other authorized federal and state agencies to evaluate performance under this Agreement, and

to inspect, evaluate, and audit any and all records, documents, and the premises, equipment and facilities maintained by the Provider pertaining to such services at any time and as otherwise required under this Agreement.

## 3. FEDERAL, STATE AND COUNTY AUDITS

In accordance with the Title 9, CCR, Chapter 11, § 1810.380(a), County will conduct monitoring and oversight activities to review Provider's SMHS programs and operations. The purpose of these oversight activities is to verify that medically necessary services are provided to clients, who meet medical necessity and criteria for access to SMHS as established <u>BHIN</u> <u>21-073</u>, in compliance with the applicable state and federal laws and regulations, and/or the terms of the Agreement between Provider and County, and future BHINs which may spell out other specific requirements.

# 4. INTERNAL AUDITING, COMPLIANCE, AND MONITORING

- A. Providers of sufficient size as determined by County shall institute and conduct a Quality Assurance Process for all services provided hereunder. Said process shall include at a minimum a system for verifying that all services provided and claimed for reimbursement shall meet SHMS definitions and be documented accurately.
- B. Provider shall provide County with notification and a summary of any internal audit within thirty (30) days of completion of said audit, consistent with <u>Subpart F of Part 75 of Subchapter A of Subtitle A of Title</u> 45 of the CFR, including any exceptions and the specific corrective actions taken to sufficiently reduce the errors that are discovered through Provider's internal audit process as applicable.
- C. Audits or monitoring by the County may be performed by way of annual Contract Monitoring Surveys. Provider receiving a Contract Monitoring Survey shall, within sixty (60) days of receipt, complete and return the survey along with all documentation, details, and supporting materials required by the survey or otherwise necessary for the County to verify compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. Failure to return the survey within the specified time period may result in the withholding of payment from the Provider until such time as compliance with the terms of the Agreement can be verified. Verifying compliance may necessitate additional on-site reviews should information submitted by the Provider be deemed insufficient or inaccurate.
- D. <u>State Audits</u>: Provider acknowledges that if total compensation under this agreement is greater than \$10,000.00, this Agreement is subject to examination and audit by the California State Auditor for a period of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, after final payment under this Agreement, pursuant to California GC § 8546.7. In order to facilitate these potential examinations and audits, Provider shall maintain, for a period of at least three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, after final payment under the contract, all books, records and documentation necessary to demonstrate performance under the Agreement.
- E. The State, CMS the Health and Human Services (HHS) Office of the Inspector General, the Comptroller General, the County, and their designees may, at any time, inspect and audit any records or documents of the County, or its Providers, and may, at any time, inspect the premises, physical facilities, and equipment where Medicaid-related activities are conducted. The right to audit under this section exists for 10 years from the final date of the Agreement period or from the date of completion of any audit, whichever is later.

- F. The Provider will make available, for purposes of an audit, evaluation, or inspection, its premises, physical facilities, equipment, books, records, contracts, computer or other electronic systems relating to its Medicaid beneficiaries.
- G. The State, CMS, the HHS Inspector General, the Comptroller General, or their designees' right to audit the Provider will exist through ten (10) years from the final date of the contract period or from the date of completion of any audit, whichever is later.
- H. If the State, CMS, or the HHS Inspector General determines that there is a reasonable possibility of fraud or similar risk, the State, CMS, or the HHS Inspector General may inspect, evaluate, and audit the Provider at any time.
- I. Upon notification of an exception or finding of non-compliance, the Provider shall submit evidence of Corrective Action within thirty (30) days, or as otherwise specified in the notice of required corrective action provided by the County. Continued non-compliance beyond due date for submission of Corrective Action may lead to termination of this Agreement in accordance with ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 13. Default, Termination and Cancellation
- J. Failure by County to notify or require Corrective Action does not constitute acceptance of the practice of waiver of the County's right to enforce.

## 5. <u>CONFIDENTIALITY IN AUDIT PROCESS</u>

- A. Provider and County mutually agree to maintain the confidentiality of Provider's client records and information, in compliance with all applicable state and federal statutes and regulations, including but not limited to HIPAA and WIC 5328, to the extent that these requirements are applicable. Provider shall inform all of its officers, employees and agents of the confidentiality provisions of all applicable statutes.
- B. Provider's fiscal records shall contain sufficient data to enable auditors to perform a complete audit and shall be maintained in conformance with standard procedures and accounting principles.
- C. Provider's records shall be maintained as required by the Director and DHCS on forms furnished by DHCS or the County. All statistical data or information requested by the Director shall be provided by the Provider in a complete and timely manner.
- 6. <u>REASONS FOR RECOUPMENT</u>
  - A. County will conduct periodic audits of Provider files to ensure appropriate clinical documentation, high quality service provision and compliance with applicable federal, state and county regulations.
  - B. Such audits may result in requirements for Provider to reimburse County for services previously paid in the following circumstances:
    - I. Identification of Fraud, Waste or Abuse as defined in federal regulation.
      - a. Fraud and abuse are defined in CFR, Title 42, § 455.2 and WIC, § 14107.11, subdivision (d).

b. Definitions for "fraud," "waste," and "abuse" can also be found in the Medicare Managed Care Manual available at <u>https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/Downloads/mc86c21.pdf</u> Overpayment of Provider by County due to errors in claiming or documentation.

II. Other reasons specified in the SMHS Reasons for Recoupment document released annually by DHCS and posted on the DHCS BHIN website.

C. Provider shall reimburse County for all overpayments identified by Provider, County and/or state or federal oversight agencies as an audit exception within the timeframes required by law or Country or state or federal agency.

## 7. <u>COOPERATION WITH AUDITS</u>

- A. Provider shall cooperate with County in any review and/or audit initiated by County, DHCS, or any other applicable regulatory body. This cooperation may include such activities as onsite program, fiscal, or chart reviews and/or audits.
- B. In addition, Provider shall comply with all requests for any documentation or files including, but not limited to, client and personnel files.
- C. Provider shall notify the County of any scheduled or unscheduled external evaluation or site visits when it becomes aware of such visit. County shall reserve the right to attend any or all parts of external review processes.
- D. Provider shall allow inspection, evaluation and audit of its records, documents and facilities for ten (10) years from the term end date of this Agreement or in the event Provider has been notified that an audit or investigation of this Agreement has been commenced, until such time as the matter under audit or investigation has been resolved, including the exhaustion of all legal remedies, whichever is later pursuant to 42 CFR §§ 438.3(h) and 438.230(c)(3)(i-iii).

## 8. <u>INDEMNITY</u>

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Provider shall defend at its own expense, indemnify, and hold the County harmless, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, against and from any and all liability, claims, suits, losses, damages, or expenses of every name, kind and description, including attorney's fees and costs incurred, brought for, or on account of, injuries to or death of any person, including but not limited to workers, County employees, and the public, or damage to property, or any economic or consequential losses, which are claimed to or in any way arise out of or are connected with the acts or omissions of Provider or its officers, agents, or employees in rendering the services, operations, or performance hereunder, except for liability, claims, suits, losses, damages or expenses arising from the sole negligence or willful acts of the County, its officers and employees, or as expressly prescribed by statute. This duty of Provider to indemnify and save County harmless includes the duties to defend set forth in California Civil Code Section 2778.

The insurance obligations of Provider are separate, independent obligations under the Agreement, and the provisions of this defense and indemnity are not intended to modify nor should they be construed as modifying or in any way limiting the insurance obligations set forth in the Agreement.

Nothing herein shall be construed to seek indemnity in excess of that permitted by Civil Code section 2782, et seq. In the event any portion of this Article is found invalid, the Parties agree that this Article shall survive and be interpreted consistent with the provisions of Civil Code section 2782, et seq.

## **ARTICLE 5. CLIENT PROTECTIONS**

## 1. <u>GRIEVANCES AND APPEALS</u>

A. All grievances (as defined by 42 CFR §438.400) and complaints received by Provider must be immediately forwarded to the County's Quality Management Department or other

designated persons via a secure method (e.g., encrypted email or by fax) to allow ample time for the Quality Management staff to acknowledge receipt of the grievance and complaints and issue appropriate responses.

- B. Provider shall not discourage the filing of grievances and clients do not need to use the term "grievance" for a complaint to be captured as an expression of dissatisfaction and, therefore, a grievance.
- C. Procedures and timeframes for responding to grievances, issuing, and responding to adverse benefit determinations, appeals, and state hearings must be followed as per 42 CFR, Part 438, Subpart F (42 CFR. §§ 438.400 438.424).
- D. Provider must provide clients with any reasonable assistance in completing forms and taking other procedural steps related to a grievance or appeal such as auxiliary aids and interpreter services.
- E. Provider must maintain records of grievances and appeals and must review the information as part of its ongoing monitoring procedures. The record must be accurately maintained in a manner accessible to the County and available upon request to DHCS.

## 2. ADVANCED DIRECTIVES

Provider must comply with all County policies and procedures regarding Advanced Directives in compliance with the requirements of 42 CFR §§ 438.604, 438.606, 438.608 and 438.610. (42 CFR §438.600(b)). For Clients aged eighteen (18) and older, Provider shall provide adult Clients with the written information on advance directives and shall not condition the provision of care or otherwise discriminate against an individual based on whether or not the individual has executed an advance directive. Provider shall educate its staff concerning the County and Provider's policies and procedures on advance directives. Any written materials prepared by the Provider shall be updated to reflect changes in State laws governing advance directives as soon as possible, but no later than ninety (90) days after the effective date of the change.

# ARTICLE 6. PROGRAM INTEGRITY

# 1. <u>GENERAL</u>

As a condition of receiving payment under a Medi-Cal managed care program, the Provider shall comply with the provisions of 42 CFR. §§438.604, 438.606, 438.608 and 438.610. (42 CFR §438.600 (b)).

# 2. <u>CREDENTIALING AND RECREDENTIALING OF PROVIDERS</u>

- A. In addition to the Service Provider Requirements set forth in Article 3, Section 2 of this Agreement, Provider must follow the uniform process for credentialing and recredentialing of network providers, including those providers subcontracted by Provider to perform services under this Agreement, established by County, including disciplinary actions such as reducing, suspending, or terminating a provider's privileges. Failure to comply with specified requirements can result in suspension or termination of a provider.
- B. Upon request, the Provider must demonstrate to the County that each of its providers are qualified in accordance with current legal, professional, and technical standards, and that they are appropriately licensed, registered, waivered, and/or certified.
- C. Provider must not employ or subcontract with providers debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded (individually, and collectively referred to as "Excluded") from participation in Federal health care programs, including Medi-Cal/Medicaid or procurement activities, as

set forth in 42 CFR. § 438.610. See relevant section below regarding specific requirements for exclusion monitoring.

- D. Providers shall ensure that all of their network providers, delivering covered services, sign and date an attestation statement on a form provided by County, in which each provider attests to the following:
  - I. Any limitations or inabilities that affect the provider's ability to perform any of the position's essential functions, with or without accommodation;
  - II. A history of loss of license or felony convictions;
  - III. A history of loss or limitation of privileges or disciplinary activity;
  - IV. A lack of present illegal drug use; and
  - V. The application's accuracy and completeness
- E. Provider must file and keep track of attestation statements for all of their providers and must make those available to the County upon request at any time.
- F. Provider is required to sign an annual attestation statement at the time of Agreement renewal in which they will attest that they will follow County's Credentialing Policy and MHSUDS IN 18-019 and ensure that all of their rendering providers are credentialed as per established guidelines.

## 3. <u>COMPLIANCE PROGRAM, INCLUDING FRAUD PREVENTION AND</u> <u>OVERPAYMENTS</u>

- A. Provider shall have in place a compliance program designed to detect and prevent fraud, waste and abuse, as per 42 CFR. §438.608 (a)(1), that must include:
  - I. Written policies, procedures, and standards of conduct that articulate the organization's commitment to comply with all applicable requirements and standards under the Agreement, and all applicable federal and state requirements.
  - II. A Compliance Office (CO) who is responsible for developing and implementing policies, procedures, and practices designed to ensure compliance with the requirements of this Agreement and who reports directly to the CEO and the Board of Directors.
  - III. A Regulatory Compliance Committee on the Board of Directors and at the senior management level charged with overseeing the organization's compliance program and its compliance with the requirements under the Agreement.
  - IV. A system for training and education for the Compliance Officer, the organization's senior management, and the organization's employees for the federal and state standards and requirements under the Agreement.
  - V. Effective lines of communication between the Compliance Officer and the organization's employees.
  - VI. Enforcement of standards through well-publicized disciplinary guidelines.
  - VII. The establishment and implementation of procedures and a system with dedicated staff for routine internal monitoring and auditing of compliance risks, prompt response to compliance issues as they are raised, investigation of potential compliance problems as identified in the course of self-evaluation and audits, corrections of such problems promptly and thoroughly to reduce the potential for recurrence, and ongoing compliance with the requirements under the Agreement.
  - VIII. The requirement for prompt reporting and repayment of any overpayments identified.

- B. Provider must have administrative and management arrangements or procedures designed to detect and prevent fraud, waste and abuse of federal or state health care funding. Provider must report fraud and abuse information to the County including but not limited to:
  - I. Any potential fraud, waste, or abuse as per 42 CFR. § 438.608(a), (a)(7),
  - II. All overpayments identified or recovered, specifying the overpayment due to potential fraud as per 42 CFR § 438.608(a), (a)(2).
  - III. Information about change in a client's circumstances that may affect the client's eligibility including changes in the client's residence or the death of the client as per 42 CFR. § 438.608(a)(3).
  - IV. Information about a change in the Provider's circumstances that may affect the network provider's eligibility to participate in the managed care program, including the termination of this Agreement with the Provider as per 42 CFR § 438.608 (a)(6).
- C. Provider shall implement written policies that provide detailed information about the False Claims Act ("Act") and other federal and state laws described in the Social Security Act, Section 1902(a)(68), including information about rights of employees to be protected as whistleblowers.
- D. Provider shall make prompt referral of any potential fraud, waste or abuse to County or potential fraud directly to the State Medicaid Fraud Control Unit.
- E. County may suspend payments to Provider if DHCS or County determine that there is a credible allegation of fraud in accordance with 42 CFR § 455.23. (42 CFR § 438.608 (a)(8)).
- F. Provider shall report to the County all identified overpayments and reason for the overpayment, including overpayments due to potential fraud. Provider shall return any overpayments to the County within sixty (60) calendar days after the date on which the overpayment was identified. (42 CFR § 438.608 (a)(2), (c)(3)).

## 4. INTEGRITY DISCLOSURES

- A. Provider shall provide information on ownership and controlling interests, disclosures related to business transactions, and disclosures related to persons convicted of crimes in the form and manner requested by the County, by the Effective Date, each time the Agreement is renewed and within thirty-five (35) days of any change in ownership or controlling interest of Provider. (42 CFR §§ 455.104, 455.105, and 455.106)
- B. Upon the execution of this Agreement, Provider shall furnish County a Provider Disclosure Statement, which, upon receipt by County, shall be kept on file with County and may be disclosed to DHCS. If there are any changes to the information disclosed in the Provider Disclosure Statement, an updated statement should be completed and submitted to the County within 35 days of the change. (42 CFR § 455.104).
- C. Provider must disclose the following information as requested in the Provider Disclosure Statement:
  - I. Disclosure of five percent (5%) or More Ownership Interest:
    - a. In the case of corporate entities with an ownership or control interest in the disclosing entity, the primary business address as well as every business location and Post Office Box address must be disclosed. In the case of an individual, the date of birth and Social Security Number must be disclosed.
    - b. In the case of a corporation with ownership or control interest in the disclosing entity or in any subcontractor in which the disclosing entity has a five percent (5%) or more interest, the corporation tax identification number must be disclosed.

- c. For individuals or corporations with ownership or control interest in any subcontractor in which the disclosing entity has a five percent (5%) or more interest, the disclosure of familial relationship is required.
- d. For individuals with five percent (5%) or more direct or indirect ownership interest of a disclosing entity, the individual shall provide evidence of completion of a criminal background check, including fingerprinting, if required by law, prior to execution of Agreement. (42 CFR § 455.434)
- II. Disclosures Related to Business Transactions:
  - a. The ownership of any subcontractor with whom Provider has had business transactions totaling more than \$25,000 during the 12-month period ending on the date of the request.
  - b. Any significant business transactions between Provider and any wholly owned supplier, or between Provider and any subcontractor, during the 5-year period ending on the date of the request. (42 CFR § 455.105(b).)
- III. Disclosures Related to Persons Convicted of Crimes:
  - a. The identity of any person who has an ownership or control interest in the Provider or is an agent or managing employee of the Provider who has been convicted of a criminal offense related to that person's involvement in any program under the Medicare, Medicaid, or the Title XXI services program since the inception of those programs. (42 CFR § 455.106.)
  - b. County shall terminate the enrollment of Provider if any person with five percent (5%) or greater direct or indirect ownership interest in the disclosing entity has been convicted of a criminal offense related to the person's involvement with Medicare, Medicaid, or Title XXI program in the last ten (10) years.
- D. Provider must provide disclosure upon execution of Contract, extension for renewal, and within thirty (35) days after any change in Provider ownership or upon request of County. County may refuse to enter into an Agreement or terminate an existing Agreement with a Provider if the Provider fails to disclose ownership and control interest information, information related to business transactions and information on persons convicted of crimes, or if the Provider did not fully and accurately make the disclosure as required.
- E. Provider must provide the County with written disclosure of any prohibited affiliations under 42 CFR §438.610. Provider must not employ or subcontract with providers or have other relationships with providers Excluded from participating in Federal health care programs, including Medi-Cal/Medicaid or procurement activities, as set forth in 42 CFR §438.610.

## 5. <u>CERTIFICATION OF NON-EXCLUSION OR SUSPENSION FROM PARTICIPATION IN</u> <u>A FEDERAL HEALTH CARE PROGRAM</u>

- A. Prior to the effective date of this Agreement, the Provider must certify that it is not excluded from participation in Federal health care programs under either section 1128 or 1128A of the Social Security Act. Failure to certify will render all provisions of this Agreement null and void and may result in the immediate termination of the Agreement.
- B. Provider shall certify, prior to the execution of the Contract, that the Provider does not employ or subcontract with providers or have other relationships with providers Excluded from participation in Federal health care programs, including Medi-Cal/Medicaid or procurement activities, as set forth in 42 CFR § 438.610. Provider shall conduct initial and

monthly Exclusion & Suspension searches of the following databases and provide evidence of these completed searches when requested by County, DHCS or the US DHHS:

- I. <u>https://www.oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/</u> LEIE Federal Exclusions
- II. <u>https://sam.gov/portal/SAM</u> GSA Exclusions Extract
- III. <u>https://mcweb.apps.prd.cammis.medi-cal.ca.gov/references/sandi</u> Suspended & Ineligible Provider List
- IV. <u>https://nppes.cms.hhs.gov/#/</u> National Plan and Provider Enumeration System (NPPES)
- V. any other database required by DHCS or DHHS.
- C. Provider shall certify, prior to the execution of the Agreement, that Provider does not employ staff or individual Providers/vendors that are on the Social Security Administration's Death Master File. Provider shall check the following database prior to employing staff or individual Providers/vendors and provide evidence of these completed searches when requested by the County, DHCS or the US DHHS.
  - I. <u>https://www.ntis.gov/ladmf/ladmf.xhtml</u>- Social Security Death Master File
- D. Provider is required to notify County immediately if Provider becomes aware of any information that may indicate their (including employees/staff and individual Providers/vendors) potential placement on an exclusions list.
- E. Provider shall screen and periodically revalidate all network providers in accordance with the requirements of 42 CFR, Part 455, Subparts B and E.
- F. Provider must confirm the identity and determine the exclusion status of all its providers, as well as any person with an ownership or control interest, or who is an agent or managing employee of the contracted agency through routine checks of federal and state databases. This includes the Social Security Administration's Death Master File, NPPES, the Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (LEIE), the Medi-Cal Suspended and Ineligible Provider List (S&I List) as consistent with the requirements of 42 CFR § 455.436.
- G. If a Provider finds a provider that is Excluded, it must promptly notify the County as per 42 CFR § 438.608(a)(2), (4). Provider shall not certify or pay any Excluded provider with Medi-Cal funds, must treat any payments made to an Excluded provider as an overpayment, and any such inappropriate payments may be subject to recovery.

# ARTICLE 7. QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

# 1. QUALITY IMPROVEMENT ACTIVITIES AND PARTICIPATION

- A. Provider shall comply with the County's ongoing comprehensive Quality Assessment and Performance Improvement (QAPI) Program (42 CFR § 438.330(a)) and work with the County to improve established outcomes by following structural and operational processes and activities that are consistent with current practice standards.
- B. Provider shall participate in quality improvement (QI) activities, including clinical and non-clinical performance improvement projects (PIPs), as requested by the County in relation to state and federal requirements and responsibilities, to improve health outcomes and clients' satisfaction over time. Other QI activities include quality assurance, collection and submission of performance measures specified by the County, mechanisms to detect both underutilization and overutilization of services, client and system outcomes, utilization management, utilization review, provider appeals, provider credentialing and recredentialing, and client grievances. Provider shall measure, monitor, and annually report to the County its performance.

- C. Provider shall implement mechanisms to assess client/family satisfaction based on County's guidance. The Provider shall assess client/family satisfaction by:
  - I. Surveying client/family satisfaction with the Provider's services at least annually.
  - II. Evaluating client grievances, appeals and State Hearings at least annually.
  - III. Evaluating requests to change persons providing services at least annually.
  - IV. Informing the County and clients of the results of client/family satisfaction activities.
- D. Provider, if applicable, shall implement mechanisms to monitor the safety and effectiveness of medication practices. This mechanism shall be under the supervision of a person licensed to prescribe or dispense prescription drugs, at least annually.
- E. Provider shall implement mechanisms to monitor appropriate and timely intervention of occurrences that raise quality of care concerns. The Provider shall take appropriate follow-up action when such an occurrence is identified. The results of the intervention shall be evaluated by the Provider at least annually and shared with the County.
- F. Provider shall collaborate with County to create a QI Work Plan with documented annual evaluations and documented revisions as needed. The QI Work Plan shall evaluate the impact and effectiveness of its quality assessment and performance improvement program.
- G. Provider shall attend and participate in the County's Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) to recommend policy decisions, review and evaluate results of QI activities, including PIPs, institute needed QI actions, and ensure follow-up of QI processes. Provider shall ensure that there is active participation by the Provider's practitioners and providers in the QIC.
- H. Provider shall assist County, as needed, with the development and implementation of Corrective Action Plans.
- I. Provider shall participate, as required, in annual, independent external quality reviews (EQR) of the quality, timeliness, and access to the services covered under this Contract, which are conducted pursuant to Subpart E of Part 438 of the Code of Federal Regulations. (42 CFR §§ 438.350(a) and 438.320)

## 2. <u>NETWORK ADEQUACY</u>

- A. Provider shall ensure that all services covered under this Agreement are available and accessible to clients in a timely manner and in accordance with the network adequacy standards required by regulation. (42 CFR §438.206 (a),(c)).
- B. Provider shall submit, when requested by County and in a manner and format determined by the County, network adequacy certification information to County, utilizing a provided template or other designated format.
- C. Provider shall submit updated network adequacy information to the County any time there has been a significant change that would affect the adequacy and capacity of services. Significant changes include, but are not limited to, changes in services or providers available to clients, and changes in geographic service area.

## 3. <u>TIMELY ACCESS</u>

A. Provider shall comply with the requirements set forth in Title 9, CCR, §1810.405, including meeting County and State Contract standards for timely access to care and services, taking into account the urgency of the need for services. County shall monitor Provider to determine compliance with timely access requirements and shall take corrective action in the event of noncompliance.

- B. Timely access standards include:
  - I. Providers must have hours of operation during which services are provided to Medi-Cal clients that are no less than the hours of operation during which the Provider offers services to non-Medi-Cal clients. If the Provider's provider only serves Medi-Cal clients, the provider must provide hours of operation comparable to the hours the Provider makes available for Medi-Cal services that are not covered by the Agreement or another county.
  - II. Appointment data, including wait times for requested services, must be recorded and tracked by Provider, and submitted to the County on a monthly basis in a format specified by the County. Appointments' data should be submitted to the County's Quality Management department or other designated persons.
  - III. Urgent care appointments for services that do not require prior authorization must be provided to clients within forty-eight (48) hours of a request. Urgent appointments for services that do require prior authorization must be provided to clients within 96 hours of request
  - IV. Non-urgent non-psychiatry mental health services, including, but not limited to Assessment, Targeted Case Management, and Individual and Group Therapy appointments (for both adult and children/youth) must be made available to Medi-Cal clients within ten (10) business days from the date the client or a provider acting on behalf of the client, requests an appointment for a medically necessary service. Non-urgent psychiatry appointments (for both adult and children/youth) must be made available to Medi-Cal clients within fifteen (15) business days from the date the client or a provider acting on behalf of the client, requests an appointment for a medically necessary service.
  - V. Applicable appointment time standards may be extended if the referring or treating provider has determined and noted in the client's record that a longer waiting period will not have a detrimental impact on the health of the client.
  - VI. Periodic office visits to monitor and treat mental health conditions may be scheduled in advance consistent with professionally recognized standards of practice as determined by the treating licensed mental health provider acting within the scope of his or her practice.

## 4. <u>PRACTICE GUIDELINES</u>

- A. Provider shall adopt practice guidelines (or adopt County's practice guidelines) that meet the following requirements:
  - I. They are based on valid and reliable clinical evidence or a consensus of health care professionals in the applicable field;
  - II. They consider the needs of the clients;
  - III. They are adopted in consultation with contracting health care professionals; and
  - IV. They are reviewed and updated periodically as appropriate (42 CFR § 438.236(b) and Title 9, CCR, § 1810.326).
  - V. Provider shall disseminate the guidelines to all affected providers and, upon request, to clients and potential clients (42 CFR § 438.236(c)).

## 5. PROVIDER APPLICATION AND VALIDATION FOR ENROLLMENT (PAVE)

A. Provider shall ensure that all of its required clinical staff, who are rendering SMHS to Medi-Cal clients on behalf of Provider, are registered through DHCS' Provider Application

and Validation for Enrollment (PAVE) portal, pursuant to <u>BHIN 20-071</u> requirements, the 21st Century Cures Act, and the CMS Medicaid and Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) Managed Care Final Rule.

- B. SMHS licensed individuals required to enroll via the "Ordering, Referring and Prescribing" (ORP) PAVE enrollment pathway (i.e., PAVE application package) available through the DHCS PED Pave Portal, include: Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW), Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT), Licensed Professional Clinical Counselor (LPCC), Psychologist, Licensed Educational Psychologist, Physician (MD and DO), Physician Assistant, Registered Pharmacist/Pharmacist, Certified Pediatric/Family Nurse Practitioner, Nurse Practitioner, Occupational Therapist, and Speech-Language Pathologist.
- C. Interns, trainees, and associates are not eligible for enrollment.

# 6. <u>REPORTING UNUSUAL OCCURRENCES</u>

- A. Provider shall report unusual occurrences to the Director. An unusual occurrence is any event which jeopardizes the health and/or safety of clients, staff and/or members of the community, including, but not limited to, physical injury and death.
- B. Unusual occurrences are to be reported to the County within timelines specified in County policy after becoming aware of the unusual event. Reports are to include the following elements:
  - I. Complete written description of event including outcome;
  - II. Written report of Provider's investigation and conclusions;
  - III. List of persons directly involved and/or with direct knowledge of the event.
- C. County and DHCS retain the right to independently investigate unusual occurrences and the Provider will cooperate in the conduct of such independent investigations.

# **ARTICLE 8. FINANCIAL TERMS**

# 1. <u>CLAIMING</u>

- A. Provider shall enter claims data into the County's billing and transactional database system within the timeframes established by County. Provider shall use Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) codes, as provided in the DHCS Billing Manual available at <u>https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/MedCCC-Library.aspx</u>, as from time to time amended.
- B. Claims shall be complete and accurate and must include all required information regarding the claimed services.
- C. Provider shall maximize the Federal Financial Participation (FFP) reimbursement by claiming all possible Medi-Cal services and correcting denied services for resubmission in a timely manner as needed.

# 2. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. County has the right to monitor the performance of this Agreement to ensure the accuracy of claims for reimbursement and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- B. Provider must comply with the False Claims Act employee training and policy requirements set forth in 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(68) and as the Secretary of the US DHHS may specify.

- C. Provider agrees that no part of any federal funds provided under this Agreement shall be used to pay the salary of an individual per fiscal year at a rate in excess of Level 1 of the Executive Schedule at <u>https://www.opm.gov/policy-data-oversight/pay-leave/salarieswages/salary-tables/22Tables/exec/html/EX.aspx</u> (U.S. Office of Personnel Management), as from time to time amended.
- D. Federal Financial Participation is not available for any amount furnished to an Excluded individual or entity, or at the direction of a physician during the period of exclusion when the person providing the service knew or had reason to know of the exclusion, or to an individual or entity when the County failed to suspend payments during an investigation of a credible allegation of fraud (42 U.S.C. §1396b(i)(2)).

### 3. FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS

The parties to this Agreement recognize and acknowledge that County is a political subdivision of the State of California. As such, County is subject to the provisions of Article XVI, section 18 of the California Constitution and other similar fiscal and procurement laws and regulations and may not expend funds for products, equipment, or services not budgeted in a given fiscal year. It is further understood that in the normal course of County business, County will adopt a proposed budget prior to a given fiscal year, but that the final adoption of a budget does not occur until after the beginning of the fiscal year.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, County shall give notice of cancellation of this Agreement in the event of adoption of a proposed budget that does not provide for funds for the services, products, or equipment subject herein. Such notice shall become effective upon the adoption of a final budget, which does not provide funding for this Agreement. Upon the effective date of such notice, this Agreement shall be automatically terminated and County released from any further liability hereunder.

In addition to the above, should the County's Board of Supervisors during the course of a given year for financial reasons reduce or order a reduction in the budget for any County department for which services were contracted to be performed, pursuant to this paragraph in the sole discretion of County, this Agreement may be deemed to be canceled in its entirety subject to payment for services performed prior to cancellation.

### 4. FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT REQUIREMENTS FOR PASS-THROUGH ENTITIES

- A. If County determines that Provider is a "subrecipient" (also known as a "pass-through entity") as defined in 2 CFR § 200 et seq., Provider represents that it will comply with the applicable cost principles and administrative requirements including claims for payment or reimbursement by County as set forth in 2 CFR § 200 et seq., as may be amended from time to time. Provider shall observe and comply with all applicable financial audit report requirements and standards.
- B. Financial audit reports must contain a separate schedule that identifies all funds included in the audit that are received from or passed through the County. County programs must be identified by Agreement number, Agreement amount, Agreement period, and the amount expended during the fiscal year by funding source.
- C. Provider will provide a financial audit report including all attachments to the report and the management letter and corresponding response within six months of the end of the audit

year to the Director. The Director is responsible for providing the audit report to the County Auditor.

D. Provider must submit any required corrective action plan to the County simultaneously with the audit report or as soon thereafter as it is available. The County shall monitor implementation of the corrective action plan as it pertains to services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 9. ADDITIONAL FINAL RULE PROVISIONS**

### 1. NON-DISCRIMINATION

- A. Provider shall not discriminate against Medi-Cal eligible individuals in its County who require an assessment or meet medical necessity criteria for SMHS services because of race, color, religion, ancestry, marital status, national origin, ethnic group identification, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, age, medical condition, genetic information, health status or need for health care services, or mental or physical disability as consistent with the requirements of applicable federal law, such as 42 CFR § 438.3(d)(3) and (4), BHIN 22-060 Enclosure 4 and State law.
- B. Provider shall take affirmative action to ensure that services to intended Medi-Cal clients are provided without use of any policy or practice that has the effect of discriminating on the basis of race, color, religion, ancestry, marital status, national origin, ethnic group identification, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, age, medical condition, genetic information, health status or need for health care services, or mental or physical disability.
- C. By signing this Agreement, Provider certifies that under the laws of the United States and the State of California, incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full, Provider shall not unlawfully discriminate against any person.
- D. County may require Provider's services on projects involving funding from various state and/or federal agencies, and as a consequence, Provider shall comply with all applicable nondiscrimination statutes and regulations during the performance of this Agreement including but not limited to the following: Provider and its employees and representatives shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, military or veteran status, marital status, age, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, or sex; Provider shall, unless exempt, comply with the applicable provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (GC, § 12900 et seq.) and applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (CCR, Title 2, § 11000 et seq.); the applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing GC, § 12990, set forth in Subchapter 5 of Chapter 5 of Division 4.1 of Title 2 of the CCR incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full; and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the California Family Rights Act (Government Code § 12945.2), the Unruh Civil Rights Act (California Civil Code, Division I, Part 2, § 51, et seq), the Ralph Civil Rights Act (California Civil Code, Division I, Part 2, § 51.7), the California Trafficking Victims Protection Act (California Civil Code, Division I, Part 2, § 52.5), the Disabled Persons Act (California Civil Code, Division I, Part 2.5), and as applicable, § 11135 et. seq., of the California Government Code, prohibiting discrimination in all state-funded programs. Provider and its employees and representatives shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause as required by law.

- E. Where applicable, Provider shall include these nondiscrimination and compliance provisions in any of its agreements that affect or are related to the services performed herein.
- F. Provider's signature executing this Agreement shall provide any certifications necessary under the federal laws, the laws of the State of California, including but not limited to Government Code § 12990 and Title 2, CCR, §11102.
- G. Provider shall comply with Exhibit E, marked "Vendor Assurance of Compliance with Nondiscrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof. Provider shall acknowledge compliance by signing and returning Exhibit E upon request by County.

### 2. <u>PHYSICAL ACCESSIBILITY</u>

In accordance with the accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Provider must provide physical access, reasonable accommodations, and accessible equipment for Medi-Cal clients with physical or mental disabilities.

#### 3. <u>APPLICABLE FEES</u>

- A. Provider shall not charge any clients or third-party payers any fee for service unless directed to do so by the County at the time the client is referred for services. When directed to charge for services, Provider shall use the uniform billing and collection guidelines prescribed by DHCS.
- B. Provider will perform eligibility and financial determinations for each beneficiary prior to rendering services in accordance with the Medi-Cal Billing Manual, unless directed otherwise by the Director.
- C. Provider shall not submit a claim to, or demand or otherwise collect reimbursement from, the client or persons acting on behalf of the client for any SMHS or related administrative services provided under this Agreement, except to collect other health insurance coverage, share of cost, and co-payments (Title 9, CCR, § 1810.365(c)).
- D. The Provider must not bill clients, for covered services, any amount greater than would be owed if the County provided the services directly as per and otherwise not bill client as set forth in 42 CFR § 438.106.

### 4. <u>CULTURAL COMPETENCE</u>

All services, policies and procedures must be culturally and linguistically appropriate. Provider must participate in the implementation of the most recent Cultural Competency Plan for the County and shall adhere to all cultural competency standards and requirements. Provider shall participate in the County's efforts to promote the delivery of services in a culturally competent and equitable manner to all clients, including those with limited English proficiency and diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, disabilities, and regardless of gender, sexual orientation, or gender identity.

### 5. CLIENT INFORMING MATERIALS

### A. Basic Information Requirements

I. Provider shall provide information in a manner and format that is easily understood and readily accessible to clients. (42 CFR §438.10(c)(1)). Provider shall provide all written materials for clients in easily understood language, format, and alternative formats that

take into consideration the special needs of clients in compliance with 42 CFR § 438.10(d)(6). Provider shall inform clients that information is available in alternate formats and how to access those formats in compliance with 42 CFR § 438.10.

- II. Provider shall provide the required information in this section to each client receiving SMHS under this Agreement and upon request, per 1915(b) Medi-Cal Specialty Mental Health Services Waiver and; Title. 9, CCR, § 1810.360(e).)
- III. Provider shall utilize the County's website that provides the content required in this section and 42 CFR § 438.10 and complies with all the requirements regarding the same set forth in 42 CFR. §438.10.
- IV. Provider shall use DHCS/County developed model beneficiary handbook and client notices. (42 CFR §§ 438.10(c)(4)(ii), 438.62(b)(3)).
- V. Client information required in this section may only be provided electronically by the Provider if all of the following conditions are met:
  - a. The format is readily accessible;
  - b. The information is placed in a location on the Provider's website that is prominent and readily accessible;
  - c. The information is provided in an electronic form which can be electronically retained and printed;
  - d. The information is consistent with the content and language requirements of this Agreement;
  - e. The client is informed that the information is available in paper form without charge upon request and the Provider provides it upon request within five (5) business days. (42 CFR § 438.10(c)(6)).
- B. Language and Format
  - I. Provider shall provide all written materials for potential clients and clients in a font size no smaller than twelve (12) point. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(6)(ii).)
  - II. Provider shall ensure its written materials that are critical to obtaining services are available in alternative formats, upon request of the client or potential client at no cost.
  - III. Provider shall make its written materials that are critical to obtaining services, including, at a minimum, provider directories, beneficiary handbook, appeal and grievance notices, denial and termination notices, and the Provider's mental health education materials, available in the prevalent non-English languages in the County. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(3).)
  - IV. Provider shall notify clients, prospective clients, and members of the public that written translation is available in prevalent languages free of cost and how to access those materials. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(5)(i), (iii); WIC § 14727(a)(1); Title 9, CCR, § 1810.410, subd. (e), para. (4))
  - V. Provider shall make auxiliary aids and services available upon request and free of charge to each client. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(3)-(4).)
  - VI. Provider shall make oral interpretation and auxiliary aids, such as Teletypewriter Telephone/Text Telephone (TTY/TDY) and American Sign Language (ASL), available and free of charge for any language in compliance with 42 CFR § 438.10(d)(2), (4)-(5).
  - VII. Taglines for written materials critical to obtaining services must be printed in a conspicuously visible font size.
- C. Beneficiary Informing Materials

- I. Each client must receive and have access to the beneficiary informing materials upon request by the client and when first receiving SMHS. Beneficiary informing materials include but are not limited to:
  - a. Guide to Medi-Cal Mental Health Services
  - b. County Beneficiary Handbook (<u>BHIN 22-060</u>)
  - c. Provider Directory
  - d. Advance Health Care Directive Form (required for adult clients only)
  - e. Notice of Language Assistance Services available upon request at no cost to the client
  - f. Language Taglines
  - g. Grievance/Appeal Process and Form
  - h. Notice of Privacy Practices
  - i. Early & Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment (EPSDT) poster (if serving clients under the age of twenty-one (21))
- II. Provider shall provide each client with a beneficiary handbook at the time the client first accesses services. The beneficiary handbook shall be provided to beneficiaries within fourteen (14) business days after receiving notice of enrollment.
- III. Provider shall give each client notice of any significant change to the information contained in the beneficiary handbook at least thirty (30) days before the intended effective date of change as per BHIN 22-060.
- IV. Required informing materials must be electronically available on the Provider's website and must be physically available at the Provider agency facility lobby for clients' access.
- V. Informing materials must be made available upon request, at no cost, in alternate formats (i.e., Braille or Audio) and Auxiliary Aids (i.e., California Relay Service (CRS) 711 and American Sign Language) and must be provided to clients within five business days. Large print materials shall be in a minimum eighteen (18) point font size.
- VI. Informing materials will be considered provided to the client if Provider does one or more of the following:
  - a. Mails a printed copy of the information to the client's mailing address before the client first receives a SMHS;
  - b. Mails a printed copy of the information upon the client's request to the client's mailing address;
  - c. Provides the information by email after obtaining the client's agreement to receive the information by email;
  - d. Posts the information on the Provider's website and advises the client in paper or electronic form that the information is available on the internet and includes applicable internet addresses, provided that clients with disabilities who cannot access this information online are provided auxiliary aids and services upon request and at no cost; or,
  - e. Provides the information by any other method that can reasonably be expected to result in the client receiving that information. If the Provider provides informing materials in person, when the client first receives SMHS, the date and method of delivery shall be documented in the client's file.
- D. Provider Directory
  - I. Provider must follow the County's provider directory policy, in compliance with MHSUDS IN 18-020.

- II. Provider must make available to clients, in paper form upon request and electronic form, specified information about its provider network as per 42 CFR § 438.10(h). The most current provider directory is electronically available on the County website and is updated by the County no later than 30 calendar days after information is received to update provider information. A paper provider directory must be updated as set forth in 42 CFR § 438.10(h)(3)(i).
- III. Any changes to information published in the provider directory must be reported to the County within two (2) weeks of the change.
- IV. Provider will only need to report changes/updates to the provider directory for licensed, waivered, or registered mental health providers.

### ARTICLE 10. DATA, PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

- 1. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURE COMMUNICATIONS
  - A. Provider shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations pertaining to the confidentiality of individually identifiable protected health information (PHI) or personally identifiable information (PII) including, but not limited to, requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act, the California Welfare and Institutions Code regarding confidentiality of client information and records and all relevant County policies and procedures.
  - B. Provider will comply with all County policies and procedures related to confidentiality, privacy, and secure communications.
  - C. Provider shall have all employees acknowledge an Oath of Confidentiality mirroring that of County, including confidentiality and disclosure requirements, as well as sanctions related to non-compliance.
  - D. Provider shall not use or disclose PHI or PII other than as permitted or required by law.
  - E. This confidentiality provision shall survive after the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

### 2. <u>ELECTRONIC PRIVACY AND SECURITY</u>

- A. Provider shall have a secure email system and send any email containing PII or PHI in a secure and encrypted manner. Provider's email transmissions shall display a warning banner stating that data is confidential, systems activities are monitored and logged for administrative and security purposes, systems use is for authorized users only, and that users are directed to log off the system if they do not agree with these requirements.
- B. Provider shall institute compliant password management policies and procedures, which shall include but are not limited to procedures for creating, changing, and safeguarding passwords. Provider shall establish guidelines for creating passwords and ensuring that passwords expire and are changed at least once every ninety (90) days.
- C. Any Electronic Health Records (EHRs) maintained by Provider that contain any PHI or PII for clients served through this Agreement shall contain a warning banner regarding the PHI or PII contained within the EHR. Provider that utilize an EHR shall maintain all parts of the clinical record that are not stored in the EHR, including but not limited to the following examples of client signed documents: discharge plans, informing materials, and health questionnaire.
- D. Provider entering data into any County electronic systems shall ensure that staff are trained to enter and maintain data within this system.

### 3. <u>HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)</u> <u>COMPLIANCE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (BAA)</u>

- A. Provider may perform or assist County in the performance of certain health care administrative duties that involve the use and/or disclosure of client identifying information as defined by HIPAA. For these duties, the Provider shall be a Business Associate of the County and shall comply with the applicable provisions set forth in Exhibit H, marked "HIPAA Business Associate Agreement," incorporated herein and made by reference a part hereof.
- B. Provider shall follow all requirements listed within the BAA and shall comply with all applicable County policies, state laws and regulations and federal laws pertaining to breaches of confidentiality. Provider agrees to hold the County harmless for any breaches or violations.

### **ARTICLE 11. CLIENT RIGHTS**

Provider shall take all appropriate steps to fully protect clients' rights, as specified in WIC § 5325 et seq; Title 9, CCR, §§ 862, 883, 884; Title 22 CCR, §72453 and § 72527; and 42 CFR §438.100.

### **ARTICLE 12. RIGHT TO MONITOR**

- 1. County or any subdivision or appointee thereof, and the State of California or any subdivision or appointee thereof, including the Auditor General, shall have absolute right to review and audit all records, books, papers, documents, corporate minutes, financial records, staff information, client records, other pertinent items as requested, and shall have absolute right to monitor the performance of Provider in the delivery of services provided under this Agreement. Full cooperation shall be given by the Provider in any auditing or monitoring conducted, according to this Agreement.
- 2. Provider shall make all of its premises, physical facilities, equipment, books, records, documents, contracts, computers, or other electronic systems pertaining to Medi-Cal enrollees, Medi-Cal-related activities, services, and activities furnished under the terms of this Agreement, or determinations of amounts payable available at any time for inspection, examination, or copying by County, the State of California or any subdivision or appointee thereof, CMS, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Office of Inspector General, the United States Comptroller General or their designees, and other authorized federal and state agencies. This audit right will exist for at least ten (10) years from the final date of the Agreement period or in the event the Provider has been notified that an audit or investigation of this Agreement has commenced, until such time as the matter under audit or investigation has been resolved, including the exhaustion of all legal remedies, whichever is later (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(3)(I)-(ii)).
- 3. The County, DHCS, CMS, or the HHS Office of Inspector General may inspect, evaluate, and audit the Provider at any time if there is a reasonable possibility of fraud or similar risk. The Department's inspection shall occur at the Provider's place of business, premises or physical facilities (42 CFR § 438.230(c)(3)(iv)).
- 4. Provider shall cooperate with the County in the implementation, monitoring and evaluation of this Agreement and comply with any and all reporting requirements established by the County. Should the County identify an issue or receive notification of a complaint or potential/actual/suspected violation of requirements, the County may audit, monitor, and/or

request information from the Provider to ensure compliance with laws, regulations, and requirements, as applicable.

- 5. County reserves the right to place Provider on probationary status, should Provider fail to meet performance requirements; including, but not limited to violations such as high disallowance rates, failure to report incidents and changes as contractually required, failure to correct issues, inappropriate invoicing, untimely and inaccurate data entry, not meeting performance outcomes expectations, and violations issued directly from the State. Additionally, Provider may be subject to Probationary Status or termination if contract monitoring and auditing corrective actions are not resolved within specified timeframes.
- 6. Provider shall retain all records and documents originated or prepared pursuant to Provider's performance under this Agreement, including client grievance and appeal records, and the data, information and documentation specified in 42 CFR parts §§ 438.604, 438.606, 438.608, and 438.610 for a period of no less than ten (10) years from the term end date of this Agreement or until such time as the matter under audit or investigation has been resolved. Records and documents include but are not limited to all physical and electronic records and documents originated or prepared pursuant to Provider's or subcontractor's performance under this Agreement including working papers, reports, financial records and documents of account, client records, prescription files, subcontracts, and any other documentation pertaining to covered services and other related services for clients.
- 7. Provider shall maintain all records and management books pertaining to service delivery and demonstrate accountability for contract performance and maintain all fiscal, statistical, and management books and records pertaining to the program. Records should include, but are not limited to, monthly summary sheets, sign-in sheets, and other primary source documents. Fiscal records shall be kept in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and must account for all funds, tangible assets, revenue and expenditures. Fiscal records must also comply with the CFR, Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter II, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.
- 8. All records shall be complete and current and comply with all Agreement requirements. Failure to maintain acceptable records per the preceding requirements shall be considered grounds for withholding of payments for billings submitted and for termination of Agreement.
- 9. Provider shall maintain client and community service records in compliance with all regulations set forth by local, state, and federal requirements, laws and regulations, and provide access to clinical records by County staff.
- 10. Provider shall comply with ARTICLE 10. Data, Privacy And Security Requirements regarding relinquishing or maintaining medical records.
- 11. Provider shall agree to maintain and retain all appropriate service and financial records for a period of at least ten (10) years from the date of final payment, the final date of the contract period, final settlement, or until audit findings are resolved, whichever is later.
- 12. Provider shall submit audited financial reports on an annual basis to the County. The audit shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and generally accepted auditing standards.
- 13. In the event the Agreement is terminated, ends its designated term or Provider ceases operation of its business, Provider shall deliver or make available to County all financial records that may have been accumulated by Provider or subcontractor under this Agreement, whether completed, partially completed or in progress within seven calendar days of said termination/end date.

- 14. Provider shall provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the County's representatives in the performance of their duties. All inspections and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner that will not unduly delay the work of Provider.
- 15. County has the discretion to revoke full or partial provisions of the Agreement, delegated activities or obligations, or application of other remedies permitted by state or federal law when the County or DHCS determines Provider has not performed satisfactorily.

### **ARTICLE 13. SITE INSPECTION**

Without limiting any other provision related to inspections or audits otherwise set forth in this Agreement, Provider shall permit authorized County, state, and/or federal agency(ies), through any authorized representative, the right to inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed hereunder including subcontract support activities and the premises which it is being performed. Provider shall provide all reasonable assistance for the safety and convenience of the authorized representative in the performance of their duties. All inspections and evaluations shall be made in a manner that will not unduly delay the work.

#### ARTICLE 14. EXECUTIVE ORDER N-6-22 – RUSSIA SANCTIONS

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. "Economic Sanctions" refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law. The EO directs state agencies to terminate contracts with, and to refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, if this Agreement is funded by state funds and County determines Provider is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for termination of this agreement. The County shall provide Provider advance written notice of such termination, allowing Provider at least thirty (30) calendar days to provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the County.

### **ARTICLE 15. CALIFORNIA RESIDENCY (FORM 590)**

If Provider is a California resident, Providers must file a State of California Form 590, certifying its California residency or, in the case of a corporation, certifying that it has a permanent place of business in California. The Provider will be required to submit a Form 590 prior to execution of an Agreement <u>or</u> County shall withhold seven (7) percent of each payment made to the Provider during term of the Agreement. This requirement applies to any agreement/contract exceeding \$1,500.00.

### ARTICLE 16. COUNTY PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM

All independent Providers or corporations providing services to County who do not have a Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Form W-9) on file with County must file a County Payee Data Record Form with County.

### ARTICLE 17. COUNTY BUSINESS LICENSE

County's Business License Ordinance provides that it is unlawful for any person to furnish supplies or services, or transact any kind of business in the unincorporated territory of El Dorado County without possessing a County business license unless exempt under County Ordinance Code Section 5.08.070. Provider warrants and represents that it shall comply with all of the

requirements of County's Business License Ordinance, where applicable, prior to beginning work under this Agreement and at all times during the term of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 18. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

The County Officer or employee with responsibility for administering this Agreement is Christianne Kernes, LMFT, Deputy Director, Behavioral Health Division, HHSA, or successor. In the instance where the named Contract Administrator no longer holds this title with County and a successor is pending, or HHSA has to temporarily delegate this authority, County Contract Administrator's Supervisor shall designate a representative to temporarily act as the primary Contract Administrator of this Agreement and HHSA Administration shall provide the Provider with the name, title and email for this designee via notification in accordance with the ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties herein.

#### **ARTICLE 19. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES**

Each party agrees that the electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of the parties included in this Agreement, are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures. Electronic Signature means any electronic visual symbol or signature attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email electronic signatures, pursuant to the California Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1633.1 to 1633.17) as amended from time to time.

### **ARTICLE 20. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES**

Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor will be deemed, to confer rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party to this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 21. COUNTERPARTS**

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

This document and the documents referred to herein or exhibits hereto are the entire Agreement between the parties and they incorporate or supersede all prior written or oral Agreements or understandings.

### **Requesting Contract Administrator Concurrence:**

Dy 12, 2024 08:43 PST) lis By: Christianne

Dated: 11/12/2024

Christianne Kernes, LMFT Deputy Director Behavioral Health Division Health and Human Services Agency

### **Requesting Department Head Concurrence**:

By: Olivia Byron-Cooper (Nov 12, 2024 19:11 PST) Olivia Byron-Cooper, MPH

Olivia Byron-Cooper, MPH Director Health and Human Services Agency Dated: 11/12/2024

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates indicated below.

### -- COUNTY OF EL DORADO --

Dated:

Dated: \_\_\_\_\_

By: \_\_\_\_\_ Chair Board of Supervisors "County"

ATTEST: Kim Dawson Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By: \_\_\_\_\_ Deputy Clerk

-- WILLOW GLEN CARE CENTER --

By: Jeff Favne /No e (Nov 13, 2024 15:22 PST)

Jeff Payne Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer "Provider"

By: Melissa Lance Melissa Lance (Nov 13, 2024 15:39 PST)

Melissa Lance Chief Financial Officer Dated: 11/13/2024

Dated: 11/13/2024

#### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit A Scope of Work

#### 1. SERVICES AND FACILITIES

Provider agrees to furnish the licensed facilities, equipment, personnel, and services necessary to provide long-term, twenty-four (24) hour residential facilities for eligible Clients on an "as requested" basis for HHSA. Provider agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations required of the licensed residential facilities and inpatient programs included herein.

- A. Adult Residential Facilities (ARF)/Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly (RCFE)/Social Rehabilitation Facility (SRF)
  - I. <u>Population to be Served</u>: El Dorado County beneficiaries eighteen (18) years of age or older who are medically stable and have a primary psychiatric diagnosis.
  - II. <u>ARF</u>: Provider shall comply with all applicable law and regulation including, but not limited to, <u>California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22</u>, <u>Division 6</u>, <u>Chapter 1</u> and <u>Chapter 6</u>, and the California Department of Social Services' (CDSS) <u>Adult Residential Facilities Manual of Policies and Procedures</u>, as may be amended from time to time. Subchapter 1 of Chapter 6 shall apply if Provider utilizes or reasonably foresees that they will utilize a manual restraint or seclusion. Subchapter 1, Section 85102 shall apply to all ARFs.
  - III. <u>RCFE</u>: Provider shall comply with all applicable law and regulation including, but not limited to, <u>CCR Title 22</u>, <u>Division 6</u>, <u>Chapter 8</u> and CDSS' <u>Residential Care Facilities for</u> <u>Elderly Manual of Policies and Procedures</u>, as may be amended from time to time.
  - IV. <u>SRF</u>: Provider shall comply with all applicable law and regulation including, but not limited to, <u>CCR Title 9</u>, <u>Division 1</u>, <u>Chapter 3</u>, <u>Article 3.5</u>; <u>CCR Title 22</u>, <u>Division 6</u>, <u>Chapter 2</u>; and CDSS' <u>Social Rehabilitation Facilities Manual of Policies and Procedures</u>, as may be amended from time to time. Provider shall provide Clients with SMHS as established by <u>WIC § 14184.402</u>, and in accordance with <u>CCR Title 9</u>, <u>Division 1</u>, <u>Chapter 11</u>, while Clients are a resident of any of the Provider's SRF facilities as identified in this Agreement.
  - V. <u>Psychiatric and Medication Support Services</u>: For ARF, RCFE and SRF facilities, medication support services shall be provided and documented in accordance with CCR Title 22, as applicable.
  - VI. <u>ARF/RCFE/SRF facilities that may be available to County:</u>

### 1) Willow Glen Care Center (WGCC) ARF

1547 Plumas Court Yuba City, CA 95991 NPI 1730235722

WGCC is a one hundred (100) bed facility featuring three (3) specialized programs:

a. *Golden Beginnings Program:* Golden Beginnings is a twenty (20)-bed program in the WGCC facility designed to meet the unique needs of the elderly with chronic mental illness. The program recognizes that this important life stage is one where Clients seek stability, security, reflection, and focus on the pleasures of their life. The program provides an environment that assists the Clients to recognize and adapt to the challenges of aging with mental illness, while preserving Clients personal sense of dignity and hope.

The Center's facilities provide specialized residential care programs with a primary

focus of continuous diagnostic assessment of the individual's mental health status, prevention of a mental health crisis, stabilization, and maintenance of the mental health condition, and transitional planning with appropriate referrals to the least restrictive level of care. Included are four distinct programs within the facility that specialize in providing program elements to meet the individual needs of each Client. WGCC coordinates with County Mental Health agencies or other community mental health providers to ensure that Clients are placed in the program that best matches the Client's physical and mental health needs.

Golden Beginnings is designed for long-term Clients; however, those Clients requiring temporary assistance for recovery from illness, or psychiatric emergencies are also eligible for placement. Clients will be discharged or transferred from this program when the resident no longer requires specialty services or needs a higher level of medical or psychiatric care. The desired outcome for Clients is a successful, stable placement in a long-term care program that provides a safe environment and specialty mental health services while assisting the resident to maintain a personal sense of dignity.

b. *Intensive Residential Care Program:* Intensive Residential Care (IRC) is a forty (40)-bed program in the WGCC facility specializing in residential care for the chronically mentally ill elderly adults who are unable to maintain traditional residential placement because of persistent behavioral problems. It is oriented to stabilize the mental health condition of those residents who need an intermediate placement before returning to a board and care, or those who are transitioning from an acute psychiatric inpatient program, Institution for Mental Disease (IMD), or state hospital to a lower level of supervised care.

The IRC Program provides intensive staff supervision, continuous Client redirection, increased social interaction with peers and staff, structured opportunities for development of social skills, a safe environment to explore and improve functional capacities and preparation for transition to a lower level of care.

The primary objective of the IRC Program is to assess and evaluate each Client and develop an individualized care plan focusing on maintaining psychiatric stability and assisting the Client to preserve placement at the lowest level of care possible.

Clients in the IRC program are reviewed weekly by the multidisciplinary team to determine the Client's progress and to facilitate and develop a transition plan to a lower level of care when appropriate.

c. *Rosewood Care Center Program:* Rosewood is a forty (40)-bed Adult Residential Program within WGCC specializing in serving adults with mental health conditions. The program adopts the principles of wellness and recovery and is focused on providing interventions and skill building for residents to maintain placement in less restrictive levels of care.

The program combines psychopharmacologic, cognitive and behavioral management along with introduction to advanced life skills education and training to provide individualize care that will aid Clients to obtain their optimal level of functioning, including assisting Clients to better manage their mental illness, make informed decisions about their treatment, pursue their own goals for recovery, and promoting overall wellness by assisting residents to develop the necessary skills to gain further independence.

The program offers structure, support, and guidance for the needs of each Client, and values and encourages resident involvement in the management of their mental health condition and overall well-being. Clients participate in a wide range of regularly scheduled strength-based groups and activities that prepare them to move back into their communities or to improve overall functioning.

### 2) Redwood Creek ARF

414 South Main Street Willits, CA 95490 NPI 1760819767

Redwood Creek is an ARF in Willits, California. The facility is licensed by the Community Care Licensing Division of the California Department of Social Services. The Center specializes in serving voluntary and conserved adults with severe and persistent mental health conditions.

### 3) Trinity Pines SRF

2753 White Avenue Chico, CA 95973 NPI 1093156317

Trinity Pines is a sixteen (16) bed SRF. It is certified as a Transitional Residential Treatment Program and serves individuals ages eighteen (18) through fifty-nine (59). Services are individually targeted and focused on comprehensive life skills development to reduce the consumer's dependence on higher levels of 24-hour care and emergency psychiatric services in order to maintain an independent living arrangement.

Trinity Pines staff works in collaboration with County Mental Health, Case Managers, the Public Guardian, and the individual consumer to develop a comprehensive plan for community re-integration from out of county higher levels of care. Trinity Pines is committed to fostering empowerment, hope, and self-reliance as essential tools for successful independent living for the consumer. The program assists the consumer to develop and independently maintain skills such as medication management, money management, appoint scheduling/attendance, use of public transportation, interpersonal development, and self-advocacy in preparation for independent living in their home community.

### B. Mental Health Rehabilitation Centers (MHRC)

- I. <u>Population to be Served</u>: El Dorado County beneficiaries ages eighteen (18) years or older and have been diagnosed with Severe Mental Illness (SMI) and additionally have severe functional impairments that meet requirements for a MHRC/IMD level of care and who may also need nursing interventions.
- II. <u>MHRC</u>: Provider shall comply with all applicable law and regulation including, but not limited to, <u>CCR Title 9</u>, <u>Division 1</u>, <u>Chapter 3.5</u>. Provider shall provide Clients with SMHS as established by <u>WIC § 14184.402</u> and in accordance with <u>CCR Title 9</u>, <u>Division 1</u>,

<u>Chapter 11</u>, while Clients are a resident of any of the Provider's MHRC facilities as identified in this Agreement.

### III. MHRC Services:

- 1. Provide intensive supervision of clients, continuous resident redirection, increased social interaction with peers and staff, structured opportunities for development of social skills, a safe environment to explore and improve functional capacities and preparation for clients to transition to a lower level of care where appropriate.
- 2. Assess and evaluate each resident and develop an individualized care plan focusing on maintaining psychiatric stability and assisting the resident to preserve placement at the lowest level of care possible.
- 3. Review residents on a weekly basis with the multidisciplinary team to determine each resident's progress and to facilitate and develop a transition plan to a lower level of care when appropriate. The multidisciplinary team will assess and review residents on a monthly basis with recommendations for transitioning to a lower level of care when indicated.
- 4. Offer long-term residents a safe, structured, secure and comfortable environment while continuing to encourage independence, self-awareness and goal setting.
- 5. Offer a variety of activities which include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Crisis Prevention
  - b. Psychopharmacologic Medication Evaluation and Management
  - c. Wellness and Recovery Services
  - d. Medical Service Referral
  - e. Peer Support Groups
  - f. Client Advocacy
  - g. Therapeutic Community
  - h. Planned Activities including:
  - i. Substance Use Disorder education
  - j. Competency restoration
  - k. Daily Living Skills
- 6. Encourage residents who have stabilized their condition to progress to a lower level of care. Residents are expected to be proactive with their personal mental health issues, including medication management, interpersonal skill development and self-advocacy. The program will incorporate principles of wellness and recovery to enhance each resident's sense of overall well-being by actively working on improved self-esteem, empowerment, autonomy and hope.
- IV. <u>Psychiatric and Medication Support Services</u>: Psychiatric and Medication Support Services shall be provided and documented in accordance with CCR, Title 9, Division 1, Chapter 3.5 and, if applicable, Medi-Cal billing requirements. Provider shall notify the County in writing when the waiting time to see a Psychiatrist exceeds twenty (20) days.
- V. MHRC Facilities that may be available to County:
  - 1) Cedar Grove MHRC

1251 Stabler Lane Yuba City, CA 95993

NPI 1063022085

Cedar Grove (CG) is a locked 44-bed MHRC specializing in structured supervision and care for chronically mentally ill adults who are unable to maintain placement at lower levels of care. The Center provides a client driven, clinician supervised rehabilitation program model that will assist clients in identifying, practicing and implementing the skills necessary to reduce utilization of inpatient hospital days and provide stable

placement in a secure environment. The goal of CG is to assist identified mental health clients to stabilize their mental health condition, optimize their functioning, and return to a less restrictive level of care for identified clients.

### 2) Sequoia Psychiatric Treatment Center MHRC

1541 Plumas Court Yuba City, CA 95991 NPI 1790111391

Sequoia Psychiatric Treatment Center (SPTC) a locked, 16-bed MHRC. The Center provides a client-driven, clinician supervised rehabilitation program model that will assist the client in identifying, practicing and implementing those skills necessary to reduce the number of inpatient hospital days and maximize their opportunity to succeed in community-based living arrangements. The goal of SPTC is to assist mental health clients to stabilize their mental health condition, optimize their functioning, and return to a less restrictive level of care.

Lanterman-Petris-Short Evaluations: For each conserved County Client placed at one of Provider's facilities, Provider shall provide two (2) annual evaluation and conservatorship declarations by two (2) different physicians or psychologists. Any additional evaluation and conservatorship declarations required by the Courts shall be provided at no charge. Fees for this service are set forth in Exhibit B.

### 2. TARGET POPULATION/CLIENT ELIGIBILITY

El Dorado County beneficiaries ages eighteen (18) years or older who meet criteria for Specialty Mental Health Services (SMHS) as established by <u>Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) §</u> <u>14184.402</u>. (hereinafter referred to as "Client" or "Clients"). Provider shall accept Clients in accordance with the established medical criteria for the facility type in which the Client will receive services. Inclusions and exclusions are as follows:

### A. Inclusions:

- I. For WGCC the resident must be sixty (60) years or older or have filed an exception for age.
- II. For Rosewood Care Center the resident must be eighteen (18) fifty-nine (59) years old or have filed an exception for age.
- III. For Trinity Pines the Client must be eighteen (18) fifty-nine (59) years or have filed an exception for age.
- IV. The Client must be admitted voluntarily or by a legal guardian/conservator and must consent to treatment.
- V. The Client must have an emergent or long term related mental health need that cannot be treated at a lower level of care.
- VI. The Client must be free from alcohol or drug use for at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to entering the program.

# B. Exclusions:

- I. The Client must not be actively dangerous to self or others.
- II. The Client must not have a need for a higher level of acute psychiatric care.
- III. The Client must not have a need for acute medical treatment or nursing care.
- IV. The Client must not have an acute case of communicable tuberculosis.
- V. The Client must not have a condition that renders them bedridden.
- VI. The Client must not have a primary diagnosis of drug or alcohol problems.

### 3. AUTHORIZATION AND DOCUMENTATION

#### A. <u>Service Authorization</u>:

- I. Provider will collaborate with County to complete authorization requests in line with County and Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) policy.
- II. Provider shall respond to County in a timely manner when consultation is necessary for County to make appropriate authorization determinations.
- III. Provider shall alert County when an expedited authorization decision (no later than seventy-two (72) hours) is necessary due to a client's specific needs and circumstances that could seriously jeopardize the client's life or health, or ability to attain, maintain, or regain maximum function.

County may provide retroactive authorization for services or waive any required authorization(s) for services, except those mandated by law, when special circumstances exist as determined by County Contract Administrator, Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) Director and the Agency Chief Financial Officer, or their designees, and will provide written notice of this determination to Provider (if applicable) in accordance with the ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 7. Notice to Parties.

- B. <u>Documentation Requirements</u>:
  - I. Provider will follow all applicable documentation requirements in compliance with federal, state and County requirements for each facility's specific licensure type.
  - II. All Provider documentation shall be accurate, complete, and legible, shall list each date of service, and include the face-to-face time for each service.
  - III. For facilities providing SMHS, Provider agrees to satisfy the chart documentation requirements set forth in <u>BHIN 22-019</u> and the contract between County and DHCS.
- C. <u>Clinical Record</u>:
  - I. Provider shall maintain adequate Client records, with a preference for an electronic clinical record, on each individual Client, which shall include diagnostic studies, records of Client interviews, treatment plans, progress notes, and records of services provided by various professional and paraprofessional personnel, in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. Such records shall comply with all applicable federal, State, and county record maintenance requirements. Provider shall ensure all written "Service Authorizations" documents become a part of the Client's clinical record. Where applicable, documentation shall be completed in compliance with Medi-Cal requirements:
  - II. Provider shall provide Medi-Cal Beneficiaries with, and document in the Clients' clinical record the provision of the "Guide to Medi-Cal Mental Health Services," "Notice of Privacy Practices," and "Informed Consent" at the first appointment after receiving the Initial Authorization, at the time of re- assessment, and upon Client request.
  - III. Provider shall inform Clients who are Medi-Cal Beneficiaries about grievance appeal, expedited appeal, fair hearing, and expedited fair hearing procedures and timeframes as specified in 42 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 438 and State guidance.
- D. <u>Services Provided in Language Other Than English</u>: If services are provided to a Client in a language other than English, Provider shall document the use of an alternate language in the Clients' clinical record and identify the language in which services were provided. In the event of the use of interpretation services in the provision of SMHS, Provider shall document in the Clients' clinical record the name of the interpreter service and the language utilized.
- E. <u>Progress Notes</u>: A progress note must be written for every service contact. For services provided at Medi-Cal billable facilities, progress notes must minimally contain the required

elements to be an allowable Medi-Cal billable service, including but not limited to the following elements:

- I. Date and time the services were provided;
- II. Date and time the documentation was entered into the medical record;
- III. The amount of time taken to provide the services;
- IV. The location of the intervention;
- V. The relevant clinical decisions and alternative approaches for future interventions;
- VI. The specific interventions applied and how the intervention relates to the Client's mental health functional impairment and qualifying diagnosis;
- VII. Identify the Client's response to the intervention;
- VIII. Document any referrals to community resources and other agencies (when appropriate); and
- IX. Be signed by the person providing the service (or electronic equivalent) with the person's type of professional degree, licensure, or job title.
- F. <u>Treatment Plans</u>: Where applicable, Provider shall develop individualized, culturally appropriate Treatment Plans. For Medi-Cal billable sites, Treatment Plans shall also meet criteria set forth in the Outpatient SMHS Protocol and in the MHP Agreement in effect at the time services were provided. Provider shall provide a copy of initial and updated Treatment Plans to county Case manager or Program Manager within ten (10) days of completion. Provider shall modify the Treatment Plan when effectiveness or progress is not evident, or to meet the changing needs of the Client. Provider staff will maintain services for Clients even when difficulties and challenges (e.g., a psychiatric emergency) disrupt the Treatment Plan.
- G. Discharge Summary:
  - I. Planned Discharge (Graduation): Provider shall provide the County a copy of the written Discharge Summary within fourteen (14) days following a planned discharge (graduation); and
  - II. Unplanned Discharge: Provider shall provide the County a copy of the written Discharge Summary within thirty (30) days following the last date of service for unplanned discharges.
- H. Requirements Regarding Information Provided to Clients:
  - I. The Provider shall provide information in a manner and format that is easily understood and readily accessible to beneficiaries. (42 CFR § 438.10(c)(l).)
  - II. The Provider shall provide all written materials for Clients in easily understood language, format, and alternative formats that take into consideration the special needs of beneficiaries. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(6).) Provider shall inform beneficiaries that information is available in alternate formats and how to access those formats. (42 CFR § 438.10.)
    - Language: Provider shall make its materials that are critical to obtaining services, including, at a minimum, provider directories, beneficiary handbooks, appeal and grievance notices, denial and termination notices, and Provider's mental health education materials, available in the prevalent non-English languages in the County. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(3). The Provider shall include language taglines, as shown on pages 11-13 of this Exhibit A, in the prevalent non-English languages in the State and in a conspicuously visible font size explaining the availability of written translation or oral interpretation to understand the information provided. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(2).)
    - 2) Font: Provider shall provide all written materials for potential Clients and Clients in a font size no smaller than twelve (12) point (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(6)(ii)). "
    - 3) Alternate Formats: The Provider shall ensure its informational materials are available in alternative formats, including large print, audio and/or braille depending upon the needs of the Clients, upon request of the potential Clients or Clients at no cost.

- 4) Auxiliary Aids: The Provider shall make auxiliary aids and services, such as TTY/TOY, available upon request and free of charge to each Client. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(3)-(4).) Provider shall also notify Clients how to access these services. (42 CFR § 438.10(d) (5)(ii)-(iii).)
- 5) Interpretation: The Provider shall make interpreter services, including American Sign Language (ASL), available and free of charge for any language. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(2), (4)-(5).) Provider shall notify Clients that the service is available and how to access those services. (42 CFR § 438.10(d)(5)(i).)
- I. <u>Cultural Competency Plan</u>: Upon request, Provider shall provide each Client with a copy of its Cultural Competency/Linguistic Policy and Procedure. Provider shall provide its Cultural Competency/Linguistic Policy to County, upon request.
- J. <u>Information Sharing</u>: County and Provider agree that their respective clinic staffs shall fully communicate and cooperate in the development of treatment planning and determining length of stay, including readiness for discharge and planned transition back into the community. To support collaboration, County and Provider may freely exchange patient information in conformance with the terms of this Agreement.

# 4. ADMISSION AND DISCHARGE

- A. <u>Referrals for Admission to Facility</u>: Clients must be referred by the HHSA, by the Behavioral Health Division or Public Guardian (with a Lanterman-Petris-Short conservatorship). Referrals for admission to Provider's facility must be approved by Provider's on-duty physician. Provider shall not be required to accept referrals if it is determined that there is insufficient bed capacity. Provider shall not be required to accept referrals for treatment of individuals housed in jail, or other penal institutions. Provider reserves the right to deny any referral at the sole discretion of the on-duty physician or clinical director. When a Client is accepted to Provider's facility, County will provide:
  - I. Copies of all benefit and insurance information prior to admission.
  - II. Individuals will arrive with two (2) weeks of medication.
  - III. Individuals will be transported by County Personnel unless prior arrangements are made.
  - IV. County will provide initial assessment and most recent assessment, with supporting documentation to the best of their ability.
- B. <u>Service & Treatment Plans</u>: Provider shall complete a Needs and Services Plan, Individual Service Plan, and/or Treatment/Rehabilitation Plan for each Client within thirty (30) days of admission, as clinically appropriate, and will provide them to County upon request. Service and treatment plans shall be completed in accordance with all law and regulation applicable to the licensed facility in which the Client is receiving services.
- C. <u>Discharges</u>:
  - I. County will provide two (2) weeks-notice prior to Client discharge to ensure all supporting documentation is prepared in a timely manner with a safe medical, psychiatric, and therapeutic transition plan. HHSA shall participate in discharge planning.
  - II. Clients are discharged or transferred from facility when (1) the Client has successfully completed a Treatment Plan and no longer needs this level of residential care, (2) the Client or their conservator requests a transfer or discharge, (3) the Client needs a higher level of medical or psychiatric care, or (4) upon request from HHSA. Clients will be discharged when they demonstrate that they meet one or more of the following criteria:
    - 1) Client has met the criteria for discharge listed in the Treatment Plan;
    - 2) Client has alleviated all crisis and/or other symptoms and demonstrated the ability to function in a less restrictive environment;

- 3) Client has demonstrated need for a higher level of medical or psychiatric care;
- 4) Client has demonstrated an uncooperative attitude toward treatment and is actively engaged in counter-productive behavior;
- 5) Client has repeatedly disregarded the house rules and/or the responsibilities and expectations;
- 6) Client has demonstrated threats or other dangerous behavior to other Clients or staff;
- 7) Client has engaged in property damage or theft;
- 8) Client has brought contraband articles or material onto the property;
- 9) Client has engaged in drinking alcohol or using illicit drugs while residing at facility; or
- 10) Client has expired.
- D. Length of Stay & Program Flexibility: Length of stay at any Provider facility varies in accordance with Client-specific needs. Provider has multiple programs that are designed to respond to both the short and long-term needs of Clients in placement. Short-term care for Clients is principally focused on personal wellness and recovery, and active discharge planning. Long-term care for some Clients with an active mental health condition averages over twelve months. Clients may stay beyond this average length of stay depending on their mental health status.

Treatment progress is reviewed at least monthly or more often as necessary, by the treatment team, the Client's guardian, and County case management to determine ongoing service necessity. When appropriate the treatment team may recommend and transfer from one program to another in order to preserve placement in the least restrictive level of care or to facilitate transition to the lowest level of care possible.

E. <u>Role of Client's Conservator</u>: In the event Client is conserved, Conservator shall have the power, if specified in the court order, to approve the care, maintenance and support of the Conservatee, to require the Conservatee to receive mental health and medical treatment related to remedying the recurrence of the Conservatee being gravely disabled, including the administration of medication. The Conservator shall have such general powers as provided by law together with the powers set forth in <u>WIC § 5358</u> to place Conservatee in the least restrictive residential placement available and necessary to achieve the purpose of treatment. This section shall not supersede any powers assigned to the Conservator or maintained by the Conservatee by court order.

### 5. **REPORTING REQUIREMENTS**

- A. <u>Quarterly Reports</u>: Provider shall provide the County (Mental Health Case Manager and Deputy Public Guardian) quarterly progress reports, summarizing the Clients overall progress to individual treatment goals, medication compliance, engagement in treatment, etc. Quarterly reports must be received within forty-five (45) days after the completion of each quarter, or upon special request. In such cases that the quarterly report is needed by Public Guardian for court purposes, the report must be received within fifteen (15) days of request.
- B. <u>Measurable Outcomes</u>:
  - I. At least eighty percent (80%) of County's Clients admitted to the program from higher level placements will move to a lower level of care within nine (9) to (12) twelve months of admission. The primary goal is for each Client to progress toward lower levels of care and return to the County of El Dorado.
  - II. Upon request of the County, the number of County Clients re-admitted to higher level

Willow Glen Care Center

placements will be reported to County to assess the long-term effectiveness of Provider's programs.

III. Upon request of the County, Provider shall provide all required evaluations, signed by a physician or psychologist, for any Client.

### 6. **OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION**

Provider agrees to furnish at no additional expense to County beyond the amounts identified under ARTICLE 2, General Provisions, 3. Compensation for Services, all space, facilities, equipment, and supplies necessary for its proper operation and maintenance.

- A. If Provider becomes aware that a Client becomes ineligible for Medi-Cal, Provider shall notify the County, and Client's Conservator if the Client is conserved, in writing within twenty-four (24) hours, and refer the Client, or Client's Conservator if the Client is conserved, to the Client's Medi-Cal Eligibility Worker.
- B. Where applicable, all program-related written materials must be provided, minimally, in English and in the County's Medi-Cal threshold language.
- C. In the event that Provider is required by subpoena to testify in any matter arising out of or concerning this Agreement by any party other than County, Provider shall not be entitled to any compensation from County for time spent or expense incurred in giving or preparing for such testimony, including travel time. Provider must seek compensation from the subpoenaing party, and County will not be liable if Provider fails to receive compensation.
- D. Provider shall have representative staff attend County-sponsored Provider Meetings and other work groups as established and scheduled.
- E. Notification of Events:
  - I. Occurrences of a Serious Nature: Provider shall notify Contract Administrator, in writing, within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of any occurrence of a serious nature. For the purpose of this Agreement, an occurrence of a serious nature shall include, but is not be limited to, accidents, injuries, acts of negligence, acts that are reportable to a governing body, hospitalizations, any event that impacts delivery of services to Client(s), events that are usually or reasonably preventable and of a nature such that the risk impacts the provision of services and/or this Agreement for Services, or loss or damage to any County property in possession of Provider.
  - II. Provider shall notify County when a Client is transferred off site to an acute care hospital for medical treatment. Provider's timely notification to County is critical for County to prevent inappropriate claiming of State General Fund and Federal Financial Participation for ancillary medical services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries residing in facilities subject to the IMD exclusion. Notifications shall be sent in an encrypted email to <u>LPS-Referrals@edcgov.us</u>.
  - III. Notification of Death:
    - Provider shall notify Contract Administrator immediately by telephone upon becoming aware of the death of any Client served under this Agreement due to any cause. The Provider shall follow up with a written report faxed or hand-delivered within twenty-four (24) hours of the telephone notification.
    - 2. Notification Content: The Notification of Death shall contain the name of the deceased, the date and time of death, the nature, and circumstances of the death, and the name(s) of Provider's officers or employees with knowledge of the incident.

# English Tagline

ATTENTION: If you need help in your language call *1.800-929-1955* (TTY: 711). Aids and services for people with disabilities, like documents in braille and large print, are also available. Call *1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711). These services are free of charge.

الشعار بالعربية (Arabic)

<sup>6</sup>ير جاالنتباه: إذا احتجت إىل المساعدة بلغتك، فاتصل ب**500.929.1955 (TTY**). تتوفر أي <sup>6</sup>ضا المساعدات والخدمات لألشخاص ذوي اإلعاقة، مثل المستندات المكتوبة بطريقة بريل

> والخط الكب في اتصل ب**800.929.1955** (TTY: 711). هذه الخدمات مجانية.

# <u> Յայերեն պիտակ (Armenian)</u>

ՈՒՇԱԴՐՈՒԹՅՈՒՆ։ Եթե Ձեզ օգնություն է հարկավոր Ձեր լեզվով, զանգահարեք **1-**800-929-1955 (TTY: 711)։ Կան նաև օժանդակ միջոցներ ու ծառայություններ հաշմանդամություն ունեցող անձանց համար, օրինակ` Բրայլի գրատիպով ու խոշորատառ տպագրված նյութեր։ Զանգահարեք **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711)։ Այդ ծառայություններն անվձար են։

### <u>ឃ្លា សម្គាល់ជាភាសាខ្មែរ (Cambodian)</u>

ចំណំ៖ ប អុ**ន** រ**្វ**រការជំនួយជាភាសារ ស់អុ**ន** សូមទូរស័ព**្ទ**ៅប**េ ខ 1-800-929-1955**(TTY: 711)។ជំនួយនិងបសវ ា កមមា<u>្រោ</u>់ជនព្ិការដូចជាឯកសារសរបសរជាអ្កសរផុស ក្មោះ ៃជនព**្**ិការកុននា ឬឯកសារសរបសរដ**ាអ**្គារព**្ទមធ**ំក៍អាចរកបានផងភ្ករ។ ទូរស័ព**្**មកេខ

*1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711)។ បសវ ា កមអោង បន<sub>េះ</sub>មេិនគ 🔂 រាវេលារៃើយ។

# 简体中文标语 (Chinese)

请注意:如果您需要以您的母语提供帮助,请致电 1-800-929-1955 (TTY: 711)。另外还提供针 对残疾人士的帮助和服务,例如盲文和需要较大字体阅读,也是方便取用的。请致电 1-800-929-1955 (TTY: 711)。这些服务都是免费的。

# مطلب به زبان فارسی (Farsi) توجه: اگر

میخواهید به زبان خود کمک دریافت کنید، ب (TTY: 711) TTY-**929-929-1955 ت**ماس بگیرید. کمکها و خدمات مخصوص افراد دارای معلولیت، مانند نسخههای خط بریل و چاپ با حروف بزرگ، نیز موجود است. با (TTY: 711) TTY:**-1-800-929-1955** تماس بگیرید. این خدمات رابگان ارائه میشوند.

# <u>ह िंदीटैगलाइन(Hindi)</u>

ध्यान दें: अगर आपको अपनी भाषा में सहायता की आवश्यकता है तो **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711) पर कॉल करें। अशक्ततावाले लोगोों केललए सहायता और सेवाऐों, जैसे ब्रेल और बडे लरोंट में भी दस्तावेज़ उपलब्ध हैं। **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711) पर कॉल करें। ये सेवाऐों लन: शुल्क हैं।



Call El Dorado County Mental Health toll-free at 1.800.929.1955 or visit online at <a href="https://www.edcgov.us/mentalhealth">https://www.edcgov.us/mentalhealth</a> . El Dorado County Mental Health is available Monday-Friday 8AM-5PM

### Nge Lus Hmoob Cob (Hmong)

CEEB TOOM: Yog koj xav tau kev pab txhais koj hom lus hu rau **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Muaj cov kev pab txhawb thiab kev pab cuam rau cov neeg xiam oob qhab, xws li puav leej muaj ua cov ntawv su thiab luam tawm ua tus ntawv loj. Hu rau **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Cov kev pab cuam no yog pab dawb xwb.

# <u>日本語表記 (Japanese)</u>

注意日本語での対応が必要な場合は 1-800-929-1955 (TTY: 711)へお電話ください。点字の資料や 文字の拡大表示など、障がいをお持ちの方のためのサービスも用意しています 。1-800-929-1955 (TTY: 711)へお電話ください。これらのサービスは無料で提供しています。

# 한국어 태그라인 (Korean)

유의사항: 귀하의 언어로 도움을 받고 싶으시면 *1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711) 번으로 문의하십시오. 점자나 큰 활자로 된 문서와 같이 장애가 있는 분들을 위한 도움과 서비스도 이용 가능합니다. *1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711) 번으로 문의하십시오. 이러한 서비스는 무료로 제공됩니다.

# <u>ແທກໄລພາສາລາວ (Laotian)</u>

ປະກາດ: ຖ້າທ່ານຕ້ອງການຄວາມຊ່ວຍເຫຼືອໃນພາສາຂອງທ່ານໃຫ້ໂທຫາເບີ **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). ຍັງມີ ຄວາມຊ່ວຍເໝືແລະການບໍລິການສໍາລັບຄົນພິ ການ ເຊັ່ ນເອກະສານທີເປັນອັກສອນນູນແລະມີໂຕພິມໃຫຍ່ໃຫ້ໂທຫາເບີ **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). ການບໍລິການເຫົານີ້ບໍຕ້ອງເສຍຄ່າໃຊ**້**ຈ່າຍໃດໆ

### <u> Mien Tagline (Mien)</u>

LONGC HNYOUV JANGX LONGX OC: Beiv taux meih qiemx longc mienh tengx faan benx meih nyei waac nor douc waac daaih lorx taux **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Liouh lorx jauv-louc tengx aengx caux nzie gong bun taux ninh mbuo wuaaic fangx mienh, beiv taux longc benx nzangc-pokc bun hluo mbiutc aengx caux aamz mborqv benx domh sou se mbenc nzoih bun longc. Douc waac daaih lorx

*1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711). Naaiv deix nzie weih gong-bou jauv-louc se benx wanghenh tengx mv zuqc cuotv nyaanh oc.

<u>ਪੰਜਾਬੀ ਟੈਗਲਾਈਨ (Punjabi)</u> ਸ਼੍ਰਿਆਨ ਧਿਓ: ਜੇ ਤੁਹਾਨੂੰ ਆਪਣੀ ਭਾਸਾ ਧ ਿੱਚ ਸਿਿਿਿੀੀ ਲੋੜ ਹੈ ਤਾਾਂ ਕਾਲ ਕਰੋ *1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711) ਅਪਾਹਜ ਲੋਕਾਂ ਲਈ ਸਹਾਇਤਾ ਅਤੇ ਸੇ ਾਾਾਂ, ਧਜ ਧਕ ਬ੍ਰੇਲ ਅਤੇ ਸਟੀ ਛਪਾਈ ਪ ਿੱਚ ਿਸਤਾ ੇਜ਼, ੀ ਉਪਲਬ੍ਿਹਿ ਹਨ| ਕਾਲ ਕਰੇ 1-800-929-1955 (TTY: 711). ਇਹ ਸੇ ਾਾਾਂ ਮੁਫ਼ਤ ਹਨ|

Call El Dorado County Mental Health toll-free at 1.800.929.1955 or visit online at https://www.edcgov.us/mentalhealth . El Dorado County Mental Health is available Monday-Friday 8AM-5PM

### Русский слоган (Russian)

ВНИМАНИЕ! Если вам нужна помощь на вашем родном языке, звоните по номеру **1-800-929-1955** (линия TTY: 711). Также предоставляются средства и услуги для людей с ограниченными возможностями, например документы крупным шрифтом или шрифтом Брайля. Звоните по номеру **1-800-929-1955** (линия TTY: 711). Такие услуги предоставляются бесплатно.

# <u>Mensaje en español (Spanish)</u>

ATENCIÓN: si necesita ayuda en su idioma, llame al **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). También ofrecemos asistencia y servicios para personas con discapacidades, como documentos en braille y con letras grandes. Llame al **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Estos servicios son gratuitos.

### Tagalog Tagline (Tagalog)

ATENSIYON: Kung kailangan mo ng tulong sa iyong wika, tumawag sa **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Mayroon ding mga tulong at serbisyo para sa mga taong may kapansanan,tulad ng mga dokumento sa braille at malaking print. Tumawag sa **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Libre ang mga serbisyong ito.

### <u>แท็กไลน์ภาษาไทย (Thai)</u>

โปรดทราบ: หากคุณตอ้ งการความช่วยเหลือเป็นภาษาของคุณ กรุณาโทรศัพท์ไปที่หมายเลข *1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711) นอกจากนี้ ยังพรอ้มใหค้วามช่วยเหลือและบริการต่าง ๆ สาหรับ บุคคลที่มีความพิการเช่น เอกสารต่าง ๆ ที่เป็นอักษรเบรลล์และเอกสารที่พิมพ์ดวัย ตัวอักษรขนาดใหญ่ กรุณาโทรศัพท์ไปที่หมายเลข

*1-800-929-1955* (TTY: 711) ไม่มีค่าใชจ้ ่ายสาหรับบริการเหล่านี้

### Примітка українською (Ukrainian)

УВАГА! Якщо вам потрібна допомога вашою рідною мовою, телефонуйте на номер **1-800-929-1955** (ТТҮ: 711). Люди з обмеженими можливостями також можуть скористатися допоміжними засобами та послугами, наприклад, отримати документи, надруковані шрифтом Брайля та великим шрифтом. Телефонуйте на номер **1-800-929-1955** (ТТҮ: 711). Ці послуги безкоштовні.

### Khẩu hiệu tiếng Việt (Vietnamese)

CHÚ Ý: Nếu quý vị cần trợ giúp bằng ngôn ngữ của mình, vui lòng gọi số **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Chúng tôi cũng hỗ trợ và cung cấp các dịch vụ dành cho người khuyết tật, như tài liệu bằng chữ nổi Braille và chữ khổ lớn (chữ hoa). Vui lòng gọi số **1-800-929-1955** (TTY: 711). Các dịch vụ này đều miễn phí.



Call El Dorado County Mental Health toll-free at 1.800.929.1955 or visit online at <u>https://www.edcgov.us/mentalhealth</u> . El Dorado County Mental Health is available Monday-Friday 8AM-5PM

### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit B Provider Rates

Provider shall observe and comply with all lockout and non-reimbursable service rules, as outlined in the most recent version of the DHCS Billing Manual available at <u>https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/MedCCC-Library.aspx</u>, or as amended.

Rate Schedule								
Facility	Facility Address	# of Beds	Type of Services	Daily Census of Clients	Unit	Rate		
Willow Clan	1547 Plumas Court	100		0-69		\$250		
Willow Glen Care Center	Yuba City, CA 95991			70-84		\$240		
(Intensive Residential Care Program, Rosewood Program, Golden Beginnings Program)	NPI: 1730235722		Adult Residential Facility (ARF)	85-100	Per day/per client	\$215		
	1251 Stabler Lane	44	Mental Health	0-30	Per	\$435		
	Yuba City, CA		Rehab Center	31-35	day/per	\$405		
Cedar Grove	95993		(MHRC)	36-44	client	\$385		
	NPI: 1063022085		Board and Care	N/A	Per month/ per client	\$850		
Sequoia Psychiatric Treatment Center	1541 Plumas Court Yuba City, CA 95991	16	MHRC	N/A	Per day/per client	\$410		
	NPI: 1790111391		Board and Care	N/A	Per month/ per client	\$850		
Trinity Pines	2753 White Avenue Chico, CA 95973 NPI: 1093156317	16	Social Rehabilitation Facility	N/A	Per day/per client	\$240		

Rate Schedule								
	414 South Main	16		0-6		\$330		
Redwood Creek	Street			7-9	Per	\$305		
	Willits, CA 95490		ARF	10-12	day/per	\$245		
	NPI: 1760819767			13-16	client	\$190		

Ancillary Daily Fee: In addition to the rates defined herein, an ancillary daily fee for extremely difficult behaviors of \$100/day shall apply when one-to one Client supervision is necessary to ensure the safety of the Client and Staff. This fee is subject to approval by the County and shall be separately identified on invoices.

**Conservatorship Evaluation and Letter**: The County shall reimburse Provider \$250 for each annual evaluation and conservatorship declaration, with a not-to-exceed amount of \$500 per year, per client. Any additional evaluations required by the physician or psychologist shall be provided at no additional charge.

**Bed Hold:** Bed holds shall be paid at the same rate as if Client were present as the facility, as established by this Exhibit B.

### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit C Bed Hold Authorization

### County of El Dorado Health and Human Services Agency Behavioral Health Division

Resident:		
Reason for Absend	e from Facility:	
Human Services Ag resident noted abov	, authorized representative for County of El Dorado Health a gency, Behavioral Health Division do hereby authorize Provider to hold the bed of t e while he/she is away from the facility. Holding the bed is guaranteeing the board a vider for the duration of the client's absence or until notice of discharge.	he
	Dated:	
Public Guardian / Pa	ayee:	
Resident:		
Reason for Absend	e from Facility:	
noted above while	, do hereby authorize Provider to hold the bed of the reside he/she is away from the facility. Holding the bed is guaranteeing the board and ca r for the duration of the client's absence or until notice of discharge.	ent are

By:

Public Guardian / Payee

Dated:

#### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit D California Levine Act Statement

California Government Code section 84308, commonly referred to as the "Levine Act," prohibits any officer of El Dorado County from participating in any action related to a contract if he or she accepts, solicits, or directs any political contributions totaling more than two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250) within the previous twelve (12) months, and for twelve (12) months following the date a final decision concerning the contract has been made, from the person or company awarded the contract. The Levine Act also requires disclosure of such contribution by a party to be awarded a specific contract. An officer of El Dorado County includes the Board of Supervisors, any elected official, and the chief administrative officer (collectively "Officer"). It is the Provider's responsibility to confirm the appropriate "Officer" and name the individual(s) in their disclosure.

Have you or your company, or any agent on behalf of you or your company, made any political contribution(s), or been solicited to make a contribution by an Officer or had an Officer direct you to make a contribution of more than \$250 to an Officer of the County of El Dorado in the twelve months preceding the date of the submission of your proposals or the anticipated date of any Officer action related to this contract?

YES NO

If yes, please identify the person(s) by name: If no, please type N/A.  $_{N/A}$ 

Do you or your company, or any agency on behalf of you or your company, anticipate or plan to make any political contribution(s) of more than \$250 to an Officer of the County of El Dorado in the twelve months following any Officer action related to this contract?

 $\Box$  YES  $\blacksquare$  NO

If yes, please identify the person(s) by name: If no, please type N/A. N/A

Answering YES to either of the two questions above does not preclude the County of El Dorado from awarding a contract to your firm or any taking any subsequent action related to the contract. It does, however, preclude the identified Officer(s) from participating in any actions related to this contract.

11/13/2024

Date

Willow Glen Care Center

Type or write name of company

(Nov 13, 2024 15:22 PST)

Signature of authorized individual

Jeff Payne

Type or write name of authorized individual

#### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit E Provider Assurance of Compliance with Nondiscrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs

HEREBY AGREES THAT it will comply with Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended; the Food Stamp Act of 1977, as amended and in particular section 272.6; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; California Civil Code Section 51 et seq., as amended; California Government Code section 11135-11139.5, as amended; California Government Code section 12940 (c), (h) (1), (i), and (j); California Government Code section 4450; Title 22, California Code of Regulations section 98000 - 98413; Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 3105A(e); the Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (California Government Code Section 7290-7299.8); Section 1808 of the Removal of Barriers to Interethnic Adoption Act of 1996; and other applicable federal and state laws, as well as their implementing regulations [including 45] Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 80, 84, and 91, 7 CFR Part 15, and 28 CFR Part 42], by ensuring that employment practices and the administration of public assistance and social services programs are nondiscriminatory, to the effect that no person shall because of ethnic group identification, age, sex, color, disability, medical condition, national origin, race, ancestry, marital status, religion, religious creed or political belief be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal or state financial assistance; and HEREBY GIVE ASSURANCE THAT it will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal and state assistance; and THE PROVIDER HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT administrative methods/procedures which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination or defeating the objectives of the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) Manual of Policies and Procedures (MPP) Chapter 21, will be prohibited.

BY ACCEPTING THIS ASSURANCE, the Provider agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit reports as required, to permit effective enforcement of the aforementioned laws, rules and regulations and permit authorized CDSS and/or federal government personnel, during normal working hours, to review such records, books and accounts as needed to ascertain compliance. If there are any violations of this assurance, CDSS shall have the right to invoke fiscal sanctions or other legal remedies in accordance with Welfare and Institutions Code section 10605, or Government Code section 11135-11139.5, or any other laws, or the issue may be referred to the appropriate federal agency for further compliance action and enforcement of this assurance.

THIS ASSURANCE is binding on the Provider directly or through contract, license, or other provider services, as long as it receives federal or state assistance.

11/13/2024

Date

1547 Plumas Court Yuba City Ca 95991 Address of Provider

• ov 13. 2024 15:22 PST)

Signature

(08/13/01)

#### Willow Glen Care Center Exhibit F HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

This Business Associate Agreement is made part of the base contract ("Underlying Agreement") to which it is attached, as of the date of commencement of the term of the Underlying Agreement (the "Effective Date").

### RECITALS

WHEREAS, County and Provider (hereinafter referred to as Business Associate ("BA") entered into the Underlying Agreement pursuant to which BA provides services to County, and in conjunction with the provision of such services, certain Protected Health Information ("PHI") and Electronic Protected Health Information ("EPHI") may be disclosed to BA for the purposes of carrying out its obligations under the Underlying Agreement;

WHEREAS, the County and BA intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI and EPHI disclosed to BA pursuant to the Agreement in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Pub. L. No. 104-191 of 1996 ("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-005 (the "HITECH" Act), and regulation promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws as may be amended from time to time;

WHEREAS, County is a Covered Entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule and Security Rule, including but not limited to 45 CFR Section 160.103;

**WHEREAS**, BA, when a recipient of PHI from County, is a Business Associate as defined in the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, and the HITECH Act, including but not limited to 42 USC Section 17938 and 45 CFR Section 160.103;

**WHEREAS**, "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR § 164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.202(g);

**WHEREAS**, "Breach" shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act under 42 USC Section 17921; and

**WHEREAS**, "Unsecured PHI" shall have the meaning to such term under the HITECH Act and any guidance issued pursuant to such Act including, but not limited to 42 USC Section 17932(h).

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:

- I. <u>Definitions</u>. Unless otherwise provided in this Business Associate Agreement, capitalized terms shall have the same meanings as set forth in the Privacy Rule, as may be amended from time to time.
- II. Scope of Use and Disclosure by BA of County Disclosed PHI
  - A. BA shall not disclose PHI except for the purposes of performing BA's obligations under the Underlying Agreement. Further, BA shall not use PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the County, Privacy Rule, Security Rule, or the HITECH Act.
  - B. Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures permitted or authorized by this Business Associate Agreement or required by law, BA may:
    - 1. Use the PHI in its possession for its proper management and administration and to fulfill any legal obligations.
    - 2. disclose the PHI in its possession to a third party for the purpose of BA's proper management and administration or to fulfill any legal responsibilities of BA, or as required by law
    - 3. Disclose PHI as necessary for BA's operations only if:
      - a) Prior to making a disclosure to a third party, BA will obtain written assurances from such third party including:
        - (1) To hold such PHI in confidence and use or further disclose it only for the purpose of which BA disclosed it to the third party, or as required by law; and
        - (2) The third party will immediately notify BA of any breaches of confidentiality of PHI to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.
    - 4. Aggregate the PHI and/or aggregate the PHI with that of other data for the purpose of providing County with data analyses related to the Underlying Agreement, or any other purpose, financial or otherwise, as requested by County.
    - 5. Not disclose PHI disclosed to BA by County not authorized by the Underlying Agreement or this Business Associate Agreement without patient authorization or de-identification of the PHI as authorized in writing by County.
    - 6. De-identify any and all PHI of County received by BA under this Business Associate Agreement provided that the de-identification conforms to the requirements of the Privacy Rule, 45 CFR and does not preclude timely payment and/or claims processing and receipt.
  - C. BA agrees that it will neither use nor disclose PHI it receives from County, or from another business associate of County, except as permitted or required by this Business Associate Agreement, or as required by law, or as otherwise permitted by law.
- III. <u>Obligations of BA</u>. In connection with its use of PHI disclosed by County to BA, BA agrees to:
  - A. Implement appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards as are necessary to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as permitted by the Agreement that reasonably and appropriately protects the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the PHI in accordance with Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and C (the "HIPAA Privacy Rule" and the "HIPAA Security Rule") in effect or as may be amended, including but not limited to 45 CFR 164.308,

164.310, 164.312, and 164.504(e)(2). BA shall comply with the policies, procedures, and documentation requirements of the HIPAA Security Rule.

- B. Report to County within 24 hours of any suspected or actual breach of security, intrusion, or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI of which BA becomes aware and/or any actual or suspected use or disclosure of data in violation of any applicable federal or state laws or regulations. BA shall take prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations.
- C. Report to County in writing of any access, use, or disclosure of PHI not permitted by the Underlying Agreement and this Business Associate Agreement, and any Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in no case later than five (5) days. To the extent the Breach is solely a result of BA's failure to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards as required by law, and not due in whole or part to the acts or omissions of the County, BA may be required to reimburse the County for notifications required under 45 CFR 164.404 and CFR 164.406.
- D. BA shall not use or disclose PHI for fundraising or marketing purposes. BA shall not disclose PHI to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has requested this special restriction, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely relates. BA shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange of PHI, except with the prior written consent of the County and as permitted by the HITECH Act, 42 USC Section 17935(d)(2); however, this prohibition shall not affect payment by County to BA for services provided pursuant to the Agreement.
- IV. <u>PHI Access, Amendment, and Disclosure Accounting</u>. BA agrees to:
  - A. Provide access, at the request of County, within five (5) days, to PHI in a Designated Record Set, to the County, or to an Individual as directed by the County. If BA maintains an Electronic Health Record, BA shall provide such information in electronic format to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to, 42 USC Section 17935(e).
  - B. Within ten (10) days of receipt of a request from County, incorporate any amendments or corrections to the PHI in accordance with the Privacy Rule in the event that the PHI in BA's possession constitutes a Designated Record Set.
  - C. To assist the County in meeting its disclosure accounting under HIPAA:
    - 1. BA agrees to implement a process that allows for an accounting to be collected and maintained by BA and its agents or subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request. However, accounting of disclosure from Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment, or health care operations purposes are required to be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to the request, and only to the extent that BA maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this requirement. At the minimum, the information collected shall include: (i) the date of disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received PHI and, if known, the address of the entity or person; (iii) a brief description of PHI disclosed and; (iv) a brief statement of purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs the individual of the basis for the disclosure, or a copy of the individual's authorization, or a copy of the written request for disclosure.

- 2. Within in 30 days of notice by the County, BA agrees to provide to County information collected in accordance with this section to permit the County to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI.
- D. Make available to the County, or to the Secretary of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary"), BA's internal practices, books and records relating to the use of and disclosure of PHI for purposes of determining BA's compliance with the Privacy Rule, subject to any applicable legal restrictions. BA shall provide County a copy of any PHI that BA provides to the Secretary concurrently with providing such information to the Secretary.
- V. Obligations of County.
  - A. County agrees that it will promptly notify BA in writing of any restrictions on the use and disclosure of PHI agreed to by County that may affect BA's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Business Associate Agreement.
  - B. County agrees that it will promptly notify BA in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by any Individual to use or disclose PHI, if such changes or revocation may affect BA's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Business Associate Agreement.
  - C. County agrees that it will promptly notify BA in writing of any known limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices to the extent that such limitation may affect BA's use of disclosure of PHI.
  - D. County shall not request BA to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by County, except as may be expressly permitted by the Privacy Rule.
  - E. County will obtain any authorizations necessary for the use or disclosure of PHI, so that BA can perform its obligations under this Business Associate Agreement and/or the Underlying Agreement.
- VI. Term and Termination.
  - A. Term. This Business Associate Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and terminate upon the termination of the Underlying Agreement, as provided therein when all PHI provided by the County to BA, or created or received by BA on behalf of the County, is destroyed or returned to the County, or, or if it is infeasible to return or destroy PHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.
  - B. Termination for Cause. Upon the County's knowledge of a material breach by the BA, the County shall either:
    - 1. Provide an opportunity for the BA to cure the breach or end the violation and terminate this Agreement if the BA does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by the County.
    - 2. Immediately terminate this Agreement if the BA has breached a material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible; or
    - 3. If neither termination nor cures are feasible, the County shall report the violation to the Secretary.
  - C. Effect of Termination.
    - 1. Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this section, upon termination of this Agreement, for any reason, the BA shall, at the option of County, return or destroy

all PHI that BA or its agents or subcontractors still maintain in any form, and shall retain no copies of such PHI.

- 2. In the event that the County determines that returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, BA shall provide to the County notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible, and BA shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the BA maintains such PHI. If County elects destruction of the PHI, BA shall certify in writing to County that such PHI has been destroyed.
- VII. Indemnity
  - A. BA shall indemnify and hold harmless all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of the County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives (collectively "County") from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of BA, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to BA's performance under this Business Associate Agreement, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, or death or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever to the extent arising from the performance of BA, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives under this Business Associate Agreement. BA shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards against the County in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.
  - B. With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by BA, BA shall, at its sole cost, have the right to use counsel of its choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes BA's indemnification of County shall be subject to County having given BA written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at BA's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. BA's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when BA has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.
  - C. The specified insurance limits required in the Underlying Agreement of this Business Associate Agreement shall in no way limit or circumscribe BA's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless the County herein from third party claims arising from the issues of this Business Associate Agreement.
  - D. In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code Section 2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code Section 2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the BA from indemnifying the County to the fullest extent allowed by law.
  - E. In the event there is a conflict between this indemnification clause and an indemnification clause contained in the Underlying Agreement of this Business

Associate Agreement, this indemnification shall only apply to the subject issues included within this Business Associate Agreement.

- VIII. <u>Amendment.</u> The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Business Associate Agreement from time to time as is necessary for County to comply with the Privacy Rule, 45 CFR, and HIPAA generally.
  - IX. <u>Survival.</u> The respective rights and obligations of this Business Associate Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Business Associate Agreement.
  - X. <u>Regulatory References.</u> A reference in this Business Associate Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule means the section as in effect or as amended.
  - XI. <u>Conflicts.</u> Any ambiguity in this Business Associate Agreement and the Underlying Agreement shall be resolved to permit County to comply with the Privacy Rule, 45 CFR, and HIPAA generally.

#### **Approval and Signatures**

By: Jeff Payne (Nov 13, 2024 15:22 PST)

Dated: 11/13/2024

Jeff Payne Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer Willow Glen Care Center "BA Representative"

Wig By: Christ 2024 08:43 PST)

Dated: 11/12/2024

Christianne Kernes, LMFT Deputy Director Behavioral Health Division El Dorado County Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) "HHSA Representative"